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In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.

The e-voting period is from 21st September 2021 at 9 A.M. to 23rd September
2021 at 5 P.M. Please refer Note No.29 of the Notice for procedure for remote

e-voting. Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized

form, as on the cut-off date of 17th September 2021, may cast their vote by

remote e-voting. Please refer Note No.30 of the Notice for attending through

Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Binny Mills Ltd

(the Company) will be held on Friday, the 24th September, 2021 at 3.00 P.M. through Video Conferencing

(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) facility to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the Financial

Year ended 31st March, 2021 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri S. Natarajan (DIN 00155988), who retires by rotation under

section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in

this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution

as an Ordinary resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT Shri S. Natarajan (DIN 00155988), Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as a

Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Binny Mills Limited

S. Sahana

Company Secretary

Registered Office:

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

Date : 13.08.2021 CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

Place : Chennai E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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NOTES:

1. As you are aware about the continuous rising situation of the Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing is

a norm to be followed. Accordingly, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circular

Nos. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020 and No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020

read with General Circular No.02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA

Circulars”) has permitted the holding of the annual general meeting through Video Conferencing

(“VC”) or through Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members

at a common venue. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/

CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/

11 dated January 15, 2021 (collectively “SEBI Circulars”), has granted relaxation in respect of sending

physical copies of annual report to shareholders and requirement of proxy for general meetings held

through electronic mode. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”),

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing

Regulations”), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 14thAGM of the Company is being held through

VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the 14thAGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at

No.4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004.

2. In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and after due

examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be held in the year

2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or before 31.12.2021, in accordance

with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per

MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated January,13,2021.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the 14th AGM is entitled

to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the

Company. Since this 14th AGM is being held pursuant to the applicable Acts, Rules and Circulars

through VC / OAVM facility, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly,

the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the 14th AGM and

hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.However, in pursuance of

Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as

the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM through

VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

4. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to

send a scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing’s body resolution/authorization etc.,

authorizing their representative to attend the 14thAGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote

through remote e-voting. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email

through its registered email address to srirampcs@gmail.com.

5. Brief details of Shri S. Natarajan (DIN 00155988), who is being re-appointed, is annexed hereto, as per

the requirements of regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and as per provisions of the Act.

6. At the 10th AGM held on 22nd September, 2017 Members approved the appointment of M/s NSR &

Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.010522S) as Auditors of the Company for a period
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of 5 years to hold office from the conclusion of 10thAGM till the conclusion of the 15thAGM, subject to

ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM. The requirement to place the matter

relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has been done away

with by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from 7th May, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution

is being proposed for ratification of appointment of the auditors at the 14th AGM.

7. Notice is also given that pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 10 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, that the Register of

Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 18th

September 2021 to Friday, 24th September 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 14th

Annual General Meeting.

8. The facility of joining the 14thAGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before and will be

open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the 14thAGM, i.e., from 02.45 p.m. to 03.15

p.m. and will be available for 1,000 members on a first-come first-served basis. This rule, however,would

not apply to participation of shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding, promoters, institutional

investors, directors, key and senior managerial personnel, auditors, etc.

9. In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder, the listed companies

may send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including financial statements, boards’ report,

etc. by electronic mode. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th

May, 2020, Notice of the 14th AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through

electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/

Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for F.Y.2020-21 will also be

available on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com, website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE

Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-voting

facility and e-voting system during the AGM) viz., www.evotingindia.com

10. Further, those Members who have not registered their email addresses may temporarily get themselves

registered with Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd

by clicking the link: https://investors.cameoindia.com  fill in the details and submit for receiving the

Annual Report for F.Y. 2020-21 also containing the Notice of the AGM. However, shareholders holding

shares in demat form may get their e-mail address registered or updated with their Depository

Participant.

11. Members attending the 14th AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning

the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

12. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital

of the Company as on 17th September 2021 being Cut-off Date.

13. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member after dispatch of the

Notice, but holds shares as on the Cut-off Date for remote e-voting i.e. 17th September 2021, may

obtain the login Id and password by sending a request to CDSL at www.evotingindia.com or to the

RTA at investors@cameoindia.com
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14. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as

per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the 14th AGM.

15. Since the 14th AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

16. The Statutory Registers will be available for inspection by the members at the registered office of the

Company during business hours, except on holidays, up to and including the date of the Annual

General Meeting of the Company.

17. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April 2019, except in case of request

received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks

associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in

physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members

can contact the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/s Cameo Corporate Services

Ltd. for assistance in this regard.

18. As required by Rule 18(3) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, members

are requested to provide their e-mail address to facilitate easy and faster dispatch of Notices of the

general meetings and other communications by electronic mode from time to time. Members who

have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register their e-mail address with their

Depository Participant(s) (DP) in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with the

RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form for receiving all communication including

Annual Report, Notices, Financial Results etc. from the Company electronically.

19. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email

address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations,

power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number,

MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and

to the RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form.

20. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are

requested to send to the Company or to the RTA, the details of such folios together with the share

certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be issued

to such Members after making requisite changes.

21. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nominations is available to the

members in respect of the shares held by them in the Company. Nomination forms can be obtained

from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company viz, Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.,

‘Subramanian Building’, 5th Floor, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai 600 002. Phone: 044-2846 0390

to 2846 0394. Members holding shares in dematerialized form may approach their respective

Depository Participant to avail and/or effect any change in the nomination facility. Members holding

shares in their single name are advised to make a nomination in respect of their shareholding

in the Company.
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22. M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., ‘Subramanian Building’, 5th Floor, No.1, Club House Road,

Chennai 600 002. Phone: 044-2846 0390 to 2846 0394 is the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer

Agent for physical transfer of shares and all correspondence may be addressed directly to them. In

respect of shares held in Demat form, members may send requests or correspond through their

respective Depository Participants.

23. As provided in Rule 18(2) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, the notice

of the meeting has been sent by e-mail to those shareholders whose registered e-mail address

is available with the Company.

24. Regulation 36(1) (a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

provides that a listed company shall send soft copies of full annual report to all those shareholders

who have registered their e-mail address for the purpose. Accordingly, the Company has sent by e-

mail the soft copy of the Annual Report to those shareholders whose registered e-mail address

is available with the Company.

25. The Annual Report of the Company sent to the members will be made available on the Company’s

website www.bmlindia.com. The physical copies of the documents pertaining to the items of business

transacted at the Annual General Meeting will be available for inspection at the Registered Office of

the Company during normal business hours on working days.

26. Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, provide that every listed company shall provide to its members

facility to exercise their right to vote at general meetings by electronic means. A member may exercise

his right to vote at any general meeting by electronic means and company may pass shareholders’

resolutions by electronic voting system (e-voting) in accordance with the applicable provisions.

27. The members may exercise their right to vote on the resolutions to be passed at this Annual General

Meeting by remote e-voting. The Company may pass shareholders’ resolutions by remote e-voting in

accordance with the applicable provisions.

28. The Board of Directors has appointed Shri P. Sriram, Practising Company Secretary (Membership

No. FCS 4862), Chennai, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the electronic voting (e-voting) process in

accordance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made there under in a fair and transparent

manner and he has consented to act as such.

29. Voting by remote e-voting or by e-voting system on the day of the 14th AGM:

The business set out in this Notice shall be conducted through electronic means by remote e-voting.

‘Remote e-voting’ means the facility of casting votes by a member using an electronic voting system

from a place other than the venue of the 14thAnnual General Meeting.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Circulars No.14/2020 dated 8th April 2020, No.17/2020 dated 13th April 2020 and No.20/2020 dated

5th May 2020, the Company is pleased to provide to its members the facility to exercise their right to

vote on the resolutions set out in the Notice for the 14thAnnual General Meeting by remote e-voting.
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Please note that only remote e-voting facility is provided. Since the AGM is held through Video

Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), the facility for voting through ballot paper

shall not be made available at the meeting venue as members are not required to be physically

present at the AGM Venue. Members attending the meeting through VC / OAVM and who have not

already cast their vote by remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be

eligible to vote through the e-voting system available during the 14thAGM.

For the purpose of remote e-voting, the Company has entered into an agreement with the Central Depository

Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) for facilitating e-voting, as the authorised e-voting agency, to enable the

shareholders to cast their votes electronically. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote

e-voting as well as through the e-voting system on the day of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The process and manner of remote e-voting, e-voting during the AGM, the time schedule and

the time period during which votes may be cast by remote e-voting, details about the log-in ID

and the process and manner of generating or receiving the password and for casting of vote in

a secure manner:

I The procedure and instructions for the voting through remote e-voting are as follows:

(i) The remote e-voting period begins on 21st September 2021 at 9 A.M. and ends on 23th

September 2021 at 5 P.M. During this period members of the Company, holding shares

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 17th September

2021, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled

by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he

shall not be entitled to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

(ii) The Company provides only remote e-voting facility and those members who have not

cast their vote by remote e-voting by 23th September 2021 at 5 P.M. shall not be entitled

to vote by remote e-voting thereafter but may vote through the e-voting system on the day

of the AGM.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020,

under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote

e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it

has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail

shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility

to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance

of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation,

it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single

login credential, through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / Depository

Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to

register again with the ESPs, thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication but

also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,

2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
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with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their

mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings

for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can

holding securities in login through their existing user id and password. Option 

Demat mode with CDSL will be made available to reach e-Voting page without

any further authentication. The URL for users to login to

Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/

myeasi/home/login or visit  www.cdslindia.com and

click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the

evoting is in progress as per the information provided by

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the

system of all e-Voting Service Providers

i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user

can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register

is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/

Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page

by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from

a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page.

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able

to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in

progress and also able to directly access the system of

all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual Shareholders 1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please

holding securities in visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser

demat mode with NSDL by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the

home page of e-Services is launched, click on the

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available

under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will

have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.

Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and

you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be

re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select

“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the

icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’

section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your

User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can

see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting

service provider name and you will be redirected to

e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting

& voting during the meeting

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat

(holding securities in account through your Depository Participant registered with

demat mode) login NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you

through their Depository will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting

Participants option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting

feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.



Binny Mills Limited

11

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL

holding securities in helpdesk by sending a request at

Demat mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at

022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL

holding securities in helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call

Demat mode with NSDL at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than

individual shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

2. Click on ‘Shareholders’ module.

3. Now Enter your User ID

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered

with the Company.

4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5. If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com

and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be

used.

6. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual

shareholders holding shares in Demat

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax

Department (Applicable for both Demat shareholders as well as

physical shareholders)

l Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/

Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence

number sent by the Company / RTA in the PAN field or contact

the Company / RTA.
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l In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the

applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first two

characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is

Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001

in the PAN Field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your

Demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your Demat account

Bank Details or in the company records for the said Demat account in order to

login.

l If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank

details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, members holding shares in Demat form will now reach ‘Password

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the

new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the Demat holders

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password

confidential.

(viii) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on

the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN of Binny Mills Ltd.

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same

the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the

Resolution.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your

vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the

Voting page.
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(xv) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by

the system.

(xvi) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians – Remote Voting only

l Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian

are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the

‘Corporates’ module.

l A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

l After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin

login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the depository

account(s) / folio numbers on which they wish to vote.

l The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able

to cast their vote.

l A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they

have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in

the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

l Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board

Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly

authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company

at the email address viz; binnymills@bmlindia.com and binnymillslimited@gmail.com,

if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

II. Process for those Shareholders whose e-mail addresses are not registered with the

Depositories for obtaining the Login credentials for e-voting for the Resolutions proposed

in this Notice :

1. For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by

email to binnymills@bmlindia.com and binnymillslimited@gmail.com or

agm@cameoindia.com

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective

Depository Participant (DP)..

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual

meetings through Depository.
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III. The procedure and instructions for the voting through the e-voting system on the day of

the 14thAGM are as follows :

(i) The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the 14thAGM is same as the instructions mentioned

above for Remote e-voting.

(ii) Only those shareholders, who are present in the 14thAGM through VC/OAVM facility and

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise

not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during

the 14thAGM.

(iii) If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 14th

AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/

OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the

facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the

meeting through VC/OAVM facility.

(iv) Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the

14thAGM, however, they will not be eligible to vote at the 14thAGM.

30. Instructions for shareholders attending the 14th AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or

Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM):

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the

instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be

displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

4. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

5. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate

any kind of aforesaid glitches.

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions on the items of business to be

transacted at the 14th AGM, during the 14ththe AGM, may register themselves as a speaker by

sending their request in advance mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number,

email id, mobile number to binnymills@bmlindia.com. The Speaker registration shall commence

from Tuesday, the 14th September 2021 at 9 A.M. and shall close on Friday, the 17th September

2021 by 5 P.M. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on

the availability of time for the 14th AGM.

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express

their views/ask questions during the 14th AGM.
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8. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the 14thAGM but have queries may send their

queries in advance, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile

number to binnymills@bmlindia.com and binnymillslimited@gmail.com.The queries may be sent

during the period commencing from Tuesday, the 14th September 2021 at 9 A.M. and shall close

on Friday, the 17th September 2021 by 5 P.M. These queries will be replied to by the company

suitably by email.

31. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,

you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-

23058542/43.

32. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013

or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43.

33. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which

may be used for sending future communication.

34. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity share

capital of the Company as on 17th September 2021, being cut-off date.

35. For the purpose of ensuring that members who have cast their votes through remote e-voting do not

vote again during the 14th Annual General Meeting, the scrutiniser shall have access, after the closure

of period for remote e-voting and before the start of the 14th Annual General Meeting, the details

relating to members, such as their names, folios, number of shares held and such other information

that the scrutiniser may require, who have cast votes through remote e-voting but not the manner in

which they have cast their votes.

36. The scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the 14th Annual General Meeting,

first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in

the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later

than three days of conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutiniser’s report of the total votes

cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman who shall countersign the same. The Chairman shall

declare the result of the voting forth with.

37. The results declared along with the report of the scrutiniser shall be placed on the Company’s website

www.bmlindia.com and on the website of CDSL immediately after the result is declared by the

Chairman. The results shall also simultaneously be forwarded to the BSE which shall place the

results on its website.



14th Annual Report 2020-2021

16

INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS

AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SS 2 - SECRETARIAL STANDARD
ON GENERAL MEETINGS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING 14TH AGM.

Name of Director Shri S. Natarajan

Date of Birth 1st  November, 1947

DIN 00155988

Date of Appointment 12th May 2010

Expertise in specific functional areas Expertise in financing and business development.

Qualifications Chartered  Accountant

Directorship held in other companies 1. Binny Ltd.

2. UCAL Fuel Systems Ltd.

3. Envestor Ventures Ltd.

4. Shriram Properties Ltd.

5. Satluj Credit and Holdings Private Ltd.

6. Sheetala Credit and Holdings Private Ltd.

7. Rajat Chakra Credit and Holdings Private Ltd.

8. Calcom Credit and Holdings Private Ltd

9. Saranga Investments And Consultancy Private

Ltd

10. Sipping Spirits Private Ltd

11. Shriram Properties Holdings Private Ltd

12. Integrated Enterprises (India) Ltd

13. Shriram Financial Ventures (Chennai) Private

Ltd

14. Shrilekha Business Consultancy Private Ltd

15. Shriram Seva Sankalp Foundation

Membership/ Chairmanship of 1. Chairman of Audit Committee in UCAL

Committees of other public companies Fuel Systems Ltd.

(includes only Audit Committees and 2. Member of  Audit Committee in Binny Ltd

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee)

Shareholdings in the Company Nil

Disclosure of inter-se relationships Nil

between directors and Key Managerial

Personnel

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Binny Mills Limited

S. Sahana

Company Secretary

Registered Office:

Date : 13.08.2021 No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Place : Chennai Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members of the Company,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth Annual Report and the Audited Financial

Statements of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY [pursuant to Rule 8(5)(i) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Based on Ind AS compliant Financial Statements

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

(In Rs. lakhs) (In Rs. lakhs)

Revenue from operations 614.96 901.33

Other income 3403.01 67.78

Profit / (loss) before Finance cost, 3,613.86 312.65

Depreciation and Exceptional item

Finance costs 1,339.62 1,600.19

Profit / (loss) before Depreciation and Exceptional item 2,274.24 (1,287.54)

Depreciation 1.68 2.89

Profit / (loss) before Tax and Exceptional item 2,272.56 (1,290.43)

Exceptional item                 - -

Profit / (loss) after Exceptional item before Tax 2,272.56 (1,290.43)

Provision for Tax (including Deferred tax) (47.24) (55.80)

Profit / (loss) after Tax 2,225.32 (1,323.26)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (1.42) (0.12)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 2,223.90 (1,323.38)

NOVEL CORONA VIRUS PANDEMIC

On 11th March, 2020, the World health Organization (WHO) declared the novel Corona virus as pandemic.

The Company immediately took effective measures to face disruptions due to the outbreak of novel Corona

virus pandemic in India. A detailed discussion in this regard is covered under the Management Discussion

and Analysis Report forming part of this report.

OPERATIONS

The members may be aware that pursuant to the Demerger Scheme of Binny Ltd, the Agencies and

Services Undertaking of Binny Ltd was transferred to and vested in the Company, with effect from 1st

January 2010, the Appointed Date as per the Demerger Scheme.

The company operates in 4 divisions viz., Warehousing, Showrooms, Agencies and Textiles. The

Warehousing division has rented its warehouses and is deriving rental income from it. The Showrooms are



14th Annual Report 2020-2021

18

engaged in retail selling of textile materials. The Agencies division is engaged in the business of selling

Tarpaulin, rain coats and bags. The Textiles division is engaged in selling textile materials, particularly

uniform materials, bed spreads, and other textile varieties.

For the year 2020-21, the Rental income from Warehousing division was Rs. 325.35 lakhs as against Rs.

349.24 lakhs in the previous year, a decrease by about 6.8%. The sales made by the Showrooms division

were Rs.112.73 lakhs as against Rs.186.36 lakhs in the previous year, a decrease by about 39.5%. The

Agencies division did not make any sale during the year as also in the previous year and the Textiles

division Rs.175.39 lakhs as against Rs. 364.21 lakhs in the previous year.

The aggregate amount of revenue from Rent, Sales and operating income were Rs.614.96 lakhs as against

Rs. 901.33 lakhs in the previous year.

The warehouse division has made a net profit of Rs.261.84 lakhs as against Rs.265.68 lakhs in the previous

year, the showrooms division has incurred a net loss of Rs.15.49 lakhs, as against a Net loss of Rs.5.30

lakhs in the previous year and the textiles division has earned a net profit of Rs.6.42 lakhs as against a Net

profit of Rs. 7.34 lakhs in the previous year.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) had become applicable to the Company

from the financial year 2017-18 onwards. Accordingly, the financial statements for the year ended 31st

March 2021 have been prepared and presented after complying with the applicable Ind AS requirements.

PREFERENCE SHARES

The 28,14,18,142 (9%) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of Rs.5/- each aggregating to

Rs.140,70,90,710/- were redeemable on or before 12th May 2020. However the redemption period was

extended for a further period of 5 years to be redeemed on or before 12th May, 2025.

The preference shareholders and the shares held by them are as follows:

Name of the shareholder Number of shares

TCP Ltd 27,60,54,066

The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Ltd 52,64,076

Shri V. R. Venkataachalam 32,000

Smt Radha 32,000

Shri V. Sengutuvan 32,000

Shri V. Rajasekaran 1,000

Shri D. Prasannamoorthy 1,000

Shri S. Varatharajan 1,000

Smt B. Meenakumari 1,000

Total 28,14,18,142

Preference share dividend is payable on the CRPS from the date of original allotment of shares by Binny

Ltd. The holders of the CRPS have preferential right to dividend over the equity share holders, as and

when dividend is declared by the company.
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In accordance with the Ind AS requirements, the Paid-up Preference Share Capital on the 9% Cumulative

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.140,70,90,710/- which was earlier classified as Share Capital has

now been reclassified as Borrowings as Financial Liabilities under Non-current liabilities.

Pursuant to this classification, the preference dividend amount of Rs.12,66,38,164/- has been charged to

Profit and Loss statement as Finance Cost for the year ended 31st March 2021 as against the amount of

Rs.15,26,74,972/- which includes preference dividend amount of Rs.12,66,38,164/- and Dividend Distribution

Tax on it for an amount of Rs.2,60,36,808/- in the previous year ended 31st March 2020.

The amount of Preference dividend payable has increased from Rs.16,323,82 lakhs in the previous year to

Rs.17,590.20 lakhs in the current year. The Dividend Distribution tax payable on the Preference dividend

was Rs.3,325.97 lakhs. This was shown under other current financial liabilities till the Financial year end

31st March 2020.

Upon transition to Ind AS, the cumulative redeemable preference shares issued is classified as Financial liabilities

and the dividend payable thereon along with Dividend Distribution Tax as per Section 115-O of the Income Tax

Act, 1961 is recognised as financial cost in accordance with Ind AS 32. Further the provisions of Section 115-O

of the Income Tax Act, 1961 has been amended with effect from 01.04.2020 stating that dividend declared,

distributed or paid by the Company will not be subject to Dividend Distribution Tax. Consequent to the said

amendment, Dividend Distribution Tax recognised in the books is no longer payable by the Company and

hence the amount of Rs.3,325.97 lakhs is reversed and is included under “Other income”.

DIVIDEND ON EQUITY SHARES

The company is not recommending dividend on the equity shares for this year.

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

Considering the difficult macro-economic conditions and challenging business environment, the Company’s

performance during the year under review was satisfactory.

FUTURE PLANS

The Company has plans to improve its sales performance in the Textile Division by focusing on whole sale

customers while retaining the existing retail customers. The Company has plans to procure bulk orders for

its Textile division in order to improve the sales and profit. The Company has plans to attract new customers

for its retail textile sale.

ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The novel Corona virus outbreak originated in Wuhan province of China. The World Health Organization

(WHO) declared novel Corona virus as pandemic on 11th March, 2020. The calendar year 2020 was severely

affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and consequent worldwide and nationwide lockdown measures were

implemented. The economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has been disruptive in the country. According

to the Ministry of Statistics, there has been a great fall in India’s growth. The World Bank approved support

to India to deal with coronavirus pandemic. During April, the RBI announced various measures to tackle

the economic impact and consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Financial markets across the world

experienced extreme instability since January 2020 due to the outbreak of pandemic. The global equity

markets and commodity prices also fell sharply since January 2020. However after a certain period the

stock market increased sharply in India.
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For more than a year this pandemic has taken its toll on not just human life, but business and financial

markets too, the extent of which is undefinable. In many countries, including India, there has been severe

disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns, disruptions in transportation, supply chain,

travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.

The Government of India, the Reserve Bank of India and other regulators have announced various measures

and relaxations acknowledging the pandemic led situation to ensure that there is enough liquidity in the

hands of market participants.

OUTLOOK AND OPPORTUNITIES

Though lockdown is still in force, certain relaxation are being provided for easing regular activities in the

Country. At present, unlock is happening in phases. The Government had laid focus on relief measures

including capacity built up of medical facilities to face pandemic, control its spread and saving human life,

free distribution of food grains and cereals, transport facility and extra funds for healthcare and for the

states, to sector related incentives and many more.

Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan or Self-reliant India campaign is the vision of new India envisaged by the

Hon’ble Prime Minister. The Finance Minister further announced Government Reforms across various

sectors under Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan. The government took several reforms such as Supply Chain

Reforms for Agriculture, Rational Tax Systems, Simple & Clear Laws, Capable Human Resource and

Strong Financial System.

The Reserve Bank of India maintained and continued to have a supportive stand with regard to monetary

policy aiming at diminishing the impact of Covid-19 pandemic, recuperate the growth and maintaining the

inflation within level. During April, India changed its FDI policy to protect Indian companies from recession

threats during the Covid-19 pandemic.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Director’s retirement by rotation:

Smt. Shri S. Natarajan, non-executive and non-independent Director, (DIN 00155988), retires by rotation

at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

Director appointment made during the year:

There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under purview.

Present term of office of Managing Director:

Shri. V. Rajasekaran, whose term of office as Managing Director was up to 12th May, 2020 was reappointed

as Managing Director for a further term of 5 years at the Board Meeting held on 29-01-2020, subject to the

approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. His reappointment as Managing Director was

approved by the Shareholders at the 13th Annual General Meeting held on 25th September, 2020.

The present term of appointment of Shri V. Rajasekaran as Managing Director of the Company is up to 11th

May, 2025.

Reappointment of Independent Directors for a second term of five consecutive years:

In accordance with the provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors,

at their meeting held on 28th May 2019, re-appointed the 3 Independent directors on the Board, viz.,
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Shri S. Varatharajan [DIN: 01819133], Shri M. Parthasarathi [DIN: 03209175] and Shri N. Jaiganesh [DIN:

06969618] for a second term of 5 consecutive years to hold office from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024

and the appointments were approved by the members by passing special resolutions at the 12th Annual

General Meeting of the Company.

The above re-appointments by the Board of Directors are based on the recommendation of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee which has carried out Performance Evaluation of the functioning of the

directors including their contribution to the Board process and decision making process and has expressed

its satisfaction over their performance.

Independent Directors’ meeting:

The independent directors met on 8th February, 2021 without the presence of other directors or members of

Management. All the independent directors were present at the meeting. In the meeting, the independent

directors reviewed performance of non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and Chairman. They

assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management

and the Board.

DISCLOSURES AS PER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(5) OF

THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Extract of Annual Return:

The extract of the Annual Return in the Form MGT 9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 (3) read with

Rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as

“Annexure 1”. In accordance with the provisions of section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Annual Return will be placed on the website of the Company at the web address www.bmlindia.com

Number of meetings of the Board:

There were four Board meetings held during the year. The details of the Board meetings and the Committee

meetings are given in the Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of the Annual Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the confirmation and explanations obtained by

them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

i) That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, for the year ended 31st March 2021, the applicable

Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation for material departures,

if any;

ii) That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year ended 31st March

2021 and of the loss of the Company for that period;

iii) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safe guarding the

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
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iv) That the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021 had been prepared on a going

concern basis.

v) Internal financial controls had been laid down to be followed by the Company and that such

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and;

vi) Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws had been devised

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Board has received the declaration from all the Independent Directors as per Section 149(6) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’) and the

Board is satisfied that all the Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as mentioned in

Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and have complied with the

Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act and the Code of Conduct for Directors

and senior management personnel.

Company’s policy on Directors appointment and remuneration:

In accordance with section 178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to Part D of Schedule II of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (henceforth referred to as ‘the

Listing regulations’), the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has put in place the policy on diversity

of Board of directors for appointment of directors taking into consideration the qualification and wide

experience of the directors in the fields of textiles trading, banking, finance, administration and legal apart

from compliance of legal requirements of the Company. The policy on diversity of Board of directors is

annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure II.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down remuneration criteria for the directors, key

managerial personnel and other employees in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. It has also laid

down, in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of

the directors including independent directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is annexed to the

Directors’ Report as Annexure III pursuant to section 178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or

disclaimer made in the Auditors’ Report and in the Secretarial Audit Report:

The Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders for the year under review does not contain any qualification,

reservation, or adverse remark or disclaimer. The Secretarial Audit Report, given by a Company Secretary

in practice, states that the Company is advised to appoint adequate number of Independent Directors. The

Company is taking all effective steps to appoint the Independent Directors.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

There are no loans made, guarantees given or security provided or securities of any other body corporate

acquired, during the year, under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

The Related Party Transactions (RPT’s) entered into by the Company are given in the Notes on Accounts

attached to the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report.  These transactions were entered
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into in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. There are no contracts

or arrangements with Related Parties referred to in section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. There are

no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest

of the Company at large. None of the directors have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the

Company except for the payment of sitting fees. There are no particulars of RPT’s to be disclosed in Form

AOC-2.

The statement of RPT’s is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis. Omnibus

approval was obtained for the transactions of repetitive nature.

The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions as

approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com.

The state of the Company’s affairs:

The state of the Company’s affairs is explained in the paragraph ‘operations’ in the Directors’ Report.

The amount, if any, carried to reserves:

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

The amount, if any, which it recommends, should be paid by way of dividend:

The Board is not recommending payment of any dividend for this year.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which

has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements

relate and the date of report:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, that have

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and

the date of report viz., for the period from 31st March 2021 to 13th August 2021.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information pursuant to section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:

(A)  Conservation of energy : Not Applicable.

(B)  Technology absorption : Not Applicable.

(C)  Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo : NIL

Risk Management Policy:

The Company has framed a Risk Management Policy to identify, communicate and manage material risks

across the organisation. The policy also ensures that responsibilities have been appropriately delegated

for risk management. Key Risk and mitigation measures are provided in the Management Discussion and

Analysis Report annexed to the Directors’ Report.
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The details about the policy developed and implemented by the Company on Corporate Social

Responsibility initiatives taken during the year:

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company for the

financial year under purview. Hence, the Company is not required to constitute the Corporate Social

Responsibility Committee and form Corporate Social Responsibility Policy during the year under purview.

However, due to the profit exceeding Rs. 5 Crores in the year under purview, the provisions of section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be applicable from the financial year 2021-22. Further, pursuant to good

corporate governance practice, your company demands adherence of social responsibility coupled with

creation of value in the larger interest of the society. Your company and its dedicated employees continue

to contribute towards several worthwhile causes. Your company aims to enhance the quality of life of the

community in general and has a strong sense of social responsibility. Your Company and its employees

have participated in welfare activities of the community.

Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of

its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 17(10) of the Listing Regulations,

the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually,

as well as the evaluation of the working of its various Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has

been carried out has been explained in the Report on Corporate Governance.

The financial summary or highlights:

The financial summary is given in the Paragraph ‘Financial summary’ in the Directors’ Report.

The change in the nature of business, if any:

There is no change in the nature of business during the year under review.

The details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed or have resigned during

the year:

Shri A. Sampath, who was appointed as the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the Company

from 30th March 2018 has submitted his resignation to be relieved from his duties by 31st July 2019. The

position was vacant till 9th June, 2020 in the year under purview. Ms. S. Sahana, was appointed as the

Company Secretary with effect from 10th June, 2020. There were no directors or other key managerial

personnel who were appointed or have resigned during the year.

The names of Companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies during the year:

There are no Companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate

companies during the year.

The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and details of

deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act,

2013:

The company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.



Binny Mills Limited

25

The details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting

the going concern status and Company’s operations in future:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the

going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

The details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial

Statements:

The Company’s well defined organizational structure, documented policy guidelines, defined authority

matrix and internal financial controls ensure efficiency of operations, protection of resources and compliance

with the applicable laws and regulations. Moreover, the Company continuously upgrades its systems and

undertakes review of policies. The internal financial control is supplemented by regular reviews by

management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure reliability of financial and all other records to

prepare the financial statements and other data. The Audit Committee reviews the internal financial controls

and also monitors the implemented suggestions.

Disclosure as to whether maintenance of cost records is required by the Company and whether

such accounts and records are made and maintained

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosure under section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year under review, there were no cases filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Disclosure as to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment

of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has a policy for prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace in accordance

with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has complied with the provisions relating to constitution of Internal

Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition

and Redressal) Act, 2013.

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The following is

a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the year:

a) Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil

b) Number of complaints received during the year Nil

c) Number of complaints disposed of during the year Nil

d) Number of cases pending at the end of the year Nil

Other Disclosures:

1. No equity shares were issued with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. No equity shares (including sweat equity shares) were issued to the employees of the Company

under any Scheme.
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3. The Company has not resorted to any buy-back of its equity shares during the year.

4. There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company to the Audit Committee under

section 143(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Composition of Audit Committee: (pursuant to section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013): The

Audit Committee comprised of the following directors namely, Shri S. Varatharajan, Chairman,

Shri M. Parthasarathi and Shri N. Jaiganesh. There was no change in the composition of the

Audit Committee.

6. The disclosures on the composition of committees constituted by the Board under the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, as well as changes in their composition, if any, during the

year is given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached to the Directors’ Report.

DISCLOSURES BY A LISTED COMPANY UNDER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT

AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the

company for the financial year:

Since no director of the Company is in receipt of remuneration from the Company there are no particulars

to be furnished.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive

Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

There is no increase in the remuneration to the aforesaid personnel in the financial year 2020-21.

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

There were no increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2020-21.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:

There are 10 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as at 31st March 2021.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial

personnel in the financial year viz., 2020-21 and its comparison with the percentile increase in the

managerial remuneration:

There is no managerial remuneration paid during the financial year 2020-21. There was no increase in the

salaries of employees during the financial year 2020-21.

The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:

The directors were not paid any remuneration during the financial year 2020-21.

Compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India on Board Meetings, General Meetings and Dividend.

STATEMENT OF EMPLOYEES’ PARTICULARS

The particulars required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 is as follows:
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During the year, there are no employees drawing remuneration of Rs.1 core and 2 lakhs or more per

annum in the aggregate, if employed throughout the financial year, or Rs.8.50 lakhs or more per month, in

the aggregate, if employed for a part of the financial year or was in receipt of remuneration which, neither

in the aggregate nor at a rate, which in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director

or holding, either by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2% of the

equity shares of the Company.

Names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year 2020-21:

Name of the employee Gross salary Rs. Name of the employee Gross salary Rs.

1 Smt. S. Sahana *4,36,500 6 Smt S. Sridhar 1,86,854

2 Shri R. Kannan 4,04,191 7 Smt K. Vijayalakshmi 1,78,779

3 Shri S. Krishnaraj 3,88,344 8 Shri V. Ravichandran 1,73,054

4 Shri M. Daniel 2,05,827 9 Smt K. Sangeetha 96,202

5 Shri C. Baskaran 2,03,014 10 Smt K. Sangeetha 73,093

*Smt. S. Sahana was appointed with effect from 10th July 2020 for the post of Company Secretary. Hence

the salary paid to her is calculated accordingly.

There are no employees who are posted and working in a country outside India, not being directors, or

their relatives, drawing more than Rs. 60 lakhs per year or Rs.5 lakhs per month, as the case may be.

AUDITORS

M/s. M/s NSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Registration No. 010522S) the Statutory Auditors

of the Company, were appointed as auditors at the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

22nd September, 2017 for a period of five years and they shall hold office till the conclusion of the 15th

Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022.

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, has amended section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by omitting

the first proviso to section 139 (1) which provided for ratification of appointment of auditor by the members

at every Annual General Meeting. The amendment has been notified to have come into effect from 7th May

2018. Due to this, there is no need for ratification by the members the appointment of auditors at every

Annual General Meeting till the completion of the five year term.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appointed Shri K. Elangovan, M/s Elangovan Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice,

Chennai, (Certificate of Practice No.3552) Membership No. (FCS 1808) to carry out Secretarial Audit under

the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial

Audit Report is annexed to this report as Annexure IV.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to section 177 (9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and regulation 22 of the Listing regulations, the Company

has formulated and established a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism for providing a mechanism
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under which an employee and director of the Company may report their genuine concerns or grievances

about violation of personnel policies of the Company, unethical behavior, suspected or actual fraud, violation

of Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.

The Vigil Mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors / employees who

avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in

exceptional cases. It also ensures standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.

The Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism is uploaded on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com

ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1. The Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 – Annexure I

2. The Policy on Board Diversity – Annexure II

3. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy – Annexure III

4. Secretarial Audit Report – Annexure IV; and

5. Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance Compliance – Annexure V

ATTACHMENTS TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, pursuant to regulation 34 (2) (e) and Schedule V of the

listing regulations, is given as a separate Report and this report is part of the Directors’ Report.

The Report on Corporate Governance

The Report on Corporate Governance, pursuant to regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V of the listing regulations,

together with Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance, the certificate duly signed by the Managing

Director on the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2021 as submitted to

the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 26th June, 2021 and the declaration by the Managing

Director regarding compliance by the Board members and senior management personnel with the

Company’s Code of Conduct is included as a separate section in the Annual Report and this Report is part

of the Directors’ Report.
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ANNEXURE I

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management &

Administration) Rules, 2014.]

1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i. CIN L17120TN2007PLC065807

ii. Registration Date 20-12-2007

iii. Name of the Company BINNY MILLS LIMITED

iv. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares / Indian

Non-Government Company

v. Address of the Registered office & No 4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore,

contact details Chennai, 600004

Telephone: 044 24991518

vi. Whether Listed Company Listed in BSE Ltd (Bombay Stock

Exchange Limited)

Scrip Code:- 535620;

Scrip ID:- BINNYMILLS;

ISIN:- INE160L01011

vii. Name, Address & contact details of the Cameo Corporate Services Limited

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. “Subramanian Building”

No. 1, Club House Road

Chennai 600 002 - India.

Ph   : 91-44 - 2846 0390 (5 lines)

Fax  : 91-44 - 2846 0129

2. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl No Name & Description of  main NIC Code of the % to total turnover

products/services Product /service  of the company

   1 Warehousing & Storage  6302  39

   2 Trading of Textile materials   171  61

3. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The company does not have holding or subsidiary or associate companies.
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4. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholder

No. of shares held at the beginning

of the year

No. of shares held at the end of the

year

%
Change
during

the
year

Shareholding Of
Promoter And

Promoter Group

A.
% of
Total
Share

Demat Physical Total
% of
Total
Share

Demat Physical Total

1. Indian          

a. Individuals/Hindu 17,08,707 - 17,08,707 53.5901 17,08,707 - 17,08,707 53.5901 -

Undivided Family

b. Central Government / - - - - - - - - -

State Government(S)

c. Bodies Corporate 6,78,303 - 6,78,303 21.2736 6,78,303 - 6,78,303 21.2736 -

d. Financial - - - - - - - - -

Institutions/Banks

e. Any Other - - - - - - - - -

 Sub - Total (A)(1) 23,87,010 - 23,87,010 74.8637 23,87,010 - 23,87,010 74.8637 -

2. Foreign

a. Individuals (Non-Resident - - - - - - - - -

Individuals/Foreign

Individuals)

b. Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

c. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

d. Qualified foreign investor - - - - - - - - -

e. Any other - - - - - - - - -

 Sub - Total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -

 Total Share Holding Of 23,87,010 - 23,87,010 74.8551 23,87,010 - 23,87,010 74.8637 0.0086

Promoter And Promoter

Group (A) =

(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public shareholding

1. Institutions

a. Mutual Funds/UTI - - - - - - - - -

b. Financial Institutions/ 1,02,667 1,602 1,04,269 3.2701 88,170 1,602 88,772 2.8155 -0.4546

Banks

c. Central Government/ 2,464 50,190 52,654 1.6531 2,464 50,190 52,654 1.6514 -

State Government(S)

d. Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

e. Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

f. Foreign Institutional - - - - - - - - -

Investors
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Category of

Shareholder

No. of shares held at the beginning

of the year

No. of shares held at the end of the

year

%
Change
during

the
year

B.
% of
Total
Share

Demat Physical Total
% of
Total
Share

Demat Physical TotalPublic shareholding

g. Foreign Venture

Capital Investors - - - - - - - - -

h. Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -

i. Any Other - - - - - - - - -

 Sub - Total (B)(1) 1,05,131 51,792 1,56,923 4.9215 90,634 51,792 1,42,426 4.4669 -0.4546

2. Non-Institutions

a. Bodies Corporate 12,081 20,478 32,559 1.0211 11,399 19,534 30,933 0.9701 -0.0509

b. Individuals -

I. Individual Shareholders

Holding Nominal Share 2,36,063 1,46,935 3,82,998 12.0119 2,28,299 1,45,515 3,73,814 11.7239 -0.2880

Capital up to Rs. 1lakh

II. Individual Shareholders

Holding Nominal Share 1,47,388 - 1,47,388 4.6225 1,77,211 - 1,77,211 5.5578 0.9353

Capital In Excess Of

Rs. 1 lakh

c. Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -

d. Any Other

 Clearing Members    157 - 157 0.0049 1,220 - - 0.0382 0.0333

Foreign Nationals 7 - 7 0.0002 7 - - 0.0002 -

 Hindu Undivided Families 14,072 - 14,072 0.4413 9,414 - 9,414 0.2952 -0.1460

 Non Resident Indians 65,372 1,941 67,313 2.1111 64,451 1,941 66,392 2.0822 -0.0288

 Trusts 47 - 47 0.0014 47 - 47 0.0014 -

  79,665 1,941 81,596 2.5590 75,139 1,941 77,080 2.4174 -0.1416

 Sub - Total (B)(2) 4,75,187 1,69,354 6,44,541 20.2147 4,92,048 1,69,990 6,59,038 20.6693 0.4546

 Total Public

Shareholding(B) = 5,80,318 2,21,146 8,01,464 25.1362 5,82,682 2,18,782 8,01,464 25.1362 -

(B)(1)+(B)(2)

 Total (A)+(B) 29,67,328 2,21,146 31,88,474 100.0000 29,69,692 2,18,782 31,88,474 100.0000 -

C. Shares Held By

Custodians And Against

Which Depository

Receipts Have Been Issued

 Promoter and Promoter - - - - - - - - -

Group

 Public - - - - - - - - -

 Total Custodian (C) - - - - - - - - -

 Grand Total (A)+(B)+(C) 29,67,328 2,21,146 31,88,474 100.0000 29,69,692 2,18,782 31,88,474 100.0000 -
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1 V R VENKATACHALAM        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020      15,40,254 48.3069        15,40,254 48.3069

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021      15,40,254 48.3069        15,40,254 48.3069

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year

Sl.

No.
Name of the Share holder No of shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares

ii) Shareholding of promoters

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of

the year

Sl.

No.

No of

shares

% of

total

shares

of the

com-

pany

% of

shares

pledged

/

encum-

bered to

total

shares

No of

shares

% of

shares

pledged

/

encum-

bered to

total

shares

%

change

in

share-

holding

during

the year

Pledged

Shares

at

begin-

ning of

the Year

Pledged

Shares

at end

of the

Year

% of

total

shares

of the

com-

pany

1 V R Venkatachalam 15,40,254 48.3069 0 15,40,254 48.3069 0 0 0 0

2 Arthos Breweries Limited 92,000 2.8853 0 92,000 2.8853 0 0 0 0

3 Sheetala Credit And 1,21,428 3.8083 0 1,21,428 3.8083 0 0 0 0

Holdings Private Limited

4 Satluj Credit And Holdings 1,20,000 3.7635 0 1,20,000 3.7635 0 0 0 0

Private Limited

5 Rajat Chakra Credit And 1,20,000 3.7635 0 1,20,000 3.7635 0 0 0 0

Holdings PrivateLimited

6 Calcom Credit And 1,20,000 3.7635 0 1,20,000 3.7635 0 0 0 0

Holdings Private Limited

7 Rajalakshmi N 82,571 2.5896 0 82,571 2.5896 0 0 0 0

8 V  Sengutuvan 74,600 2.3396 0 74,600 2.3396 0 0 0 0

9 Twentieth Century-Apco 41,205 1.2923 0 41,205 1.2923 0 0 0 0

Leasing Private Limited

10 Dr Andal Arumugam 8,987 0.2818 0 8,987 0.2818 0 0 0 0

11 TCP Limited 63,670 1.9968 0 63,670 1.9968 0 0 0 0

12 Nandagopal  M 1,615 0.0506 0 1,615 0.0506 0 0 0 0

13 Namitha Shanmugam 21 0.0006 0 21 0.0006 0 0 0 0

14 Shanmugam E 659 0.0206 0 659 0.0206 0 0 0 0

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
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2 ARTHOS BREWERIES LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020        92,000 2.8853            92,000 2.8853

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 92000 2.8853 92,000 2.8853

3 SHEETALA CREDIT AND HOLDINGS

PRIVATE LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020        1,21,428 3.8083         1,21,428 3.8083

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021        1,21,428 3.8083         1,21,428 3.8083

4 SATLUJ CREDIT AND HOLDINGS

PRIVATE LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020        1,20,000 3.7635         1,20,000 3.7635

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021        1,20,000 3.7635         1,20,000 3.7635

5 RAJAT CHAKRA CREDIT AND

HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020        1,20,000 3.7635         1,20,000 3.7635

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021        1,20,000 3.7635         1,20,000 3.7635

6 CALCOM CREDIT AND HOLDINGS

PRIVATE LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020        1,20,000 3.7635         1,20,000 3.7635

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021        1,20,000 3.7635         1,20,000 3.7635

7 RAJALAKSHMI N        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020           82,571 2.5896            82,571 2.5896

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021           82,571 2.5896            82,571 2.5896

8 V  SENGUTUVAN        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020           74,600 2.3396            74,600 2.3396

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021           74,600 2.3396            74,600 2.3396

9 TWENTIETH CENTURY-APCO LEASING

PRIVATE LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020           41,205 1.2923            41,205 1.2923

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021           41,205 1.2923            41,205 1.2923

10 DR ANDAL ARUMUGAM        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020            8,987 0.2818              8,987 0.2818

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021            8,987 0.2818              8,987 0.2818

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year

Sl.

No.
Name of the Share holder No of shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares
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11 TCP LIMITED        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020            63,670 1.9968 63,670 1.9968

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 63,670 1.9968 63,670 1.9968

12 NANDAGOPAL  M        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020            1,615 0.0506              1,615 0.0506

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021            1,615 0.0506              1,615 0.0506

13 NAMITHA SHANMUGAM        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020                 21 0.0006                   21 0.0006

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021                 21 0.0006                   21 0.0006

14 SHANMUGAM E        

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 659 0.0206 659 0.0206

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 659 0.0206 659 0.0206

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year

Sl.

No.
Name of the Share holder No of shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares

1 LIFE INSURANCE

CORPORATION OF INDIA       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 88,170 2.7652 88,170 2.7652

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 88,170 2.7652 88,170 2.7652

2 RAMANATHAN SRINIVASAN       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 62,285 1.9534 62,285 1.9534

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 62,285 1.9534 62,285 1.9534

3 SADAYAVEL  KAILASAM       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 62,285 1.9534 62,285 1.9534

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 62,285 1.9534 62,285 1.9534

4 GOVERNOR OF TAMIL NADU  JT1 :

REPRESENTING GOVT OF TAMIL NADU       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 48,705 1.5275 48,705 1.5275

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 48,705 1.5275 48,705 1.5275

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year

Sl.

No.
Name of the Share holder No of shares

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of total
shares of

the
company

No of shares
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5 SAKTHIVEL  J       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 40,856 1.2813 40,856 1.2813

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 40,856 1.2813 40,856 1.2813

6 MUKESH KANOOGA S

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 15,677 0.4916 15,677 0.4916

Sale 23-Oct-2020 -15,000 0.4704 677 0.0212
At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 677 0.0212 677 0.0212
HAVING SAME PAN
MUKESH
At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
Purchase 23-Oct-2020 15,000 0.4704 15,000 0.4704

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 15,000 0.4704 15,000 0.4704

7 NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LTD       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 14,440 0.4528 14,440 0.4528

                                       Sale 26-Jun-2021 -14,440 0.4528 14,440 0.4528

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 0 0.0000 0 0

8 V N MUNISAMY       

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2019 14,285 0.4480 14,285 0.4480

  At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020 14,285 0.4480 14,285 0.4480

9 R  APPAJI       

At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 14,285 0.4480 14,285 0.4480

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 14,285 0.4480 14,285 0.4480

10 PL. KANNAPPAN .

  At the beginning of the year 01-Apr-2020 8,927 0.2799 8,927 0.2799

                        Sale 24-Apr-2020 -300 0.0094 8,627 0.2705

                    Purchase 12-Jun-2020 300 0.0094 8,927 0.2799

                        Sale 19-Jun-2020 -445 0.0139 8,482 0.2660

                          Sale 26-Jun-2020 -400 0.0125 8,082 0.2534

                        Sale 30-Jun-2020 -400 0.0125 7,682 0.2409

                        Sale 03-Jul-2020 -672 0.0210 7,010 0.2198

                        Sale 10-Jul-2020 -700 0.0219 6,310 0.1979

                        Sale 17-Jul-2020 -200 0.0062 6,110 0.1916

                        Sale 24-Jul-2020 -450 0.0141 5,660 0.1775

                        Sale 31-Jul-2020 -225 0.0070 5,435 0.1704

                        Sale 07-Aug-2020 -300 0.0094 5,135 0.1610

                        Sale 14-Aug-2020 -100 0.0031 5,035 0.1579

                    Purchase 21-Aug-2020 100 0.0031 5,135 0.1610

                    Purchase 28-Aug-2020 4,60 0.0144 5,595 0.1754

                    Purchase 04-Sep-2020 50 0.0015 5,645 0.1770

                    Purchase 18-Sep-2020 50 0.0015 5,695 0.1786

                    Purchase 25-Sep-2020 100 0.0031 5,795 0.1817

                    Purchase 09-Oct-2020 300 0.0094 6,095 0.1911

                    Purchase 16-Oct-2020 161 0.0050 6,256 0.1962

                    Purchase 23-Oct-2020 400 0.0125 6,656 0.2087

                    Purchase 30-Oct-2020 400 0.0125 7,056 0.2212
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                    Purchase 06-Nov-2020 59 0.0018 7,115 0.2231

                        Sale 13-Nov-2020 -275 0.0086 6,840 0.2145

                        Sale 20-Nov-2020 -209 0.0065 6,631 0.2079

                        Sale 27-Nov-2020 -610 0.0191 6,021 0.1888

                        Sale 04-Dec-2020 -531 0.0166 5,490 0.1721

                        Sale 11-Dec-2020 -789 0.0247 4,701 0.1474

                        Sale 18-Dec-2020 -811 0.0254 3,890 0.1220

                    Purchase 25-Dec-2020 88 0.0027 3,978 0.1247

                    Purchase 31-Dec-2020 334 0.0104 4,312 0.1352

                    Purchase 01-Jan-2021 50 0.0015 4,362 0.1368

                    Purchase 08-Jan-2021 100 0.0031 4,462 0.1399

                    Purchase 15-Jan-2021 300 0.0094 4,762 0.1493

                    Purchase 29-Jan-2021 100 0.0031 4,862 0.1524

                        Sale 12-Feb-2021 -250 0.0078 4,612 0.1446

                    Purchase 19-Feb-2021 82 0.0025 4,694 0.1472

                        Sale 26-Feb-2021 -148 0.0046 4,546 0.1425

                        Sale 05-Mar-2021 -700 0.0219 3,846 0.1206

                        Sale 12-Mar-2021 -100 0.0031 3,746 0.1174

                        Sale 19-Mar-2021 -200 0.0062 3,546 0.1112

                    Purchase 31-Mar-2021 300 0.0094 3,846 0.1206

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2021 3,846 0.1206 3,846 0.1206
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Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative

Shareholding during

the year

Sl.

No.

No of shares

at the

beginning

and at the

end of the

year

% of total
shares of

the
company

% of total
shares of

the
company

No of sharesName of the Share holder

Equity Shares

1 V.R. Venkatachalam 15,40,254 48.3069 15,40,254 48.3069

2 V. Sengutuvan 74,600 2.3396 74,600 2.3396

3 V. Rajasekaran 71 0.002 71 0.002

9% Cumulative Redeemable

Preference Shares

1 V.R. Venkatachalam 32,000 0.01 32,000 0.01

2 V. Sengutuvan 32,000 0.01 32,000 0.01

3 V. Rajasekaran 1,000 - 1,000 -

4. INDEBTEDNESS:

The indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment are

as follows:

Unsecured   Deposits Total

Loans   Rs. Indebtedness

Rs. Rs.

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 62,616 NIL 62,616

ii) Interest due but not paid – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) 62,616 62,616

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions – – –

Reduction – – –

Net Change – – –

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 62,616 - 62,616

ii) Interest due but not paid - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 62,616 62,616

(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
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5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

No Remuneration was paid to the Managing Director during the year.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

The directors are not paid any remuneration except sitting fees of Rs.5,000/- each for attending

Board meetings and Committee meetings.

Sl.

No.
Name of Directors

Fee for

attending

board /

committee

meetings

(in Rs)

Commission

(in Rs)

Others

(in Rs)

Total amount

(in Rs)

Particulars of Remuneration

1 Independent Directors        

Shri S. Varatharajan 40,000   -   - 40,000

Shri M. Parthasarathi 50,000   -   - 50,000

Shri N. Jai Ganesh 35,000   -   - 35,000

Total of (1) 1,25,000

2 Other Non-Executive Directors    

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam  5,000 - - 5,000

Shri  V. Sengutuvan   5,000   -   -   5,000

Mrs. V. Samyuktha   5,000   -   -   5,000

Total of (2)   -   - 15,000

Total of (1) & (2) 1,40,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Rs.34 Lakhs

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel (other than Managing Director)

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total

No.

1 Gross Salary CEO Company CFO

Secretary

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

  (a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1)

of the Income Tax Act, 1961. - 4,36,500 - 4,36,500

  (b) Value of perquisites u/s

17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - - -

   

 -

 -

 -

-

 -

-

 -
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Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total

No.

1 Gross Salary CEO Company CFO

Secretary

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

  (c ) Profits in lieu of salary under

section 17(3) of the Income

Tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission as % of profit - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total - 4,36,500 - 4,36,500

6. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal

Companies  Act Description Punishment/ (RD/NCLT/ made if

Compounding Court) any (give

fees imposed details)

A.  COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

For and on behalf of the Board

V.R. Venkataachalam

Chairman

[DIN: 00037524]

Registered Office:

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

Date : 13th August 2021 CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

Place : Chennai E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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ANNEXURE II

POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY

1. Purpose

Pursuant to Part D of Schedule II of the Listing regulations (in Para A (3)), the Company has framed a

formal policy on Board Diversity which sets out a framework to promote diversity on Company’s Board

of Directors (the ‘Board’).

2. Vision

The Company recognizes the importance and benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance quality

of its performance.

3. Policy Statement

The Company believes that a diverse Board will enhance the quality of the decisions made by the

Board by utilizing the different skills, qualification, professional experience, gender, knowledge, etc.

of the members of the Board, necessary for achieving sustainable and balanced development. For

appointments of persons to office of directors and deciding composition of the Board, the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee and the Board shall also have due regard to this policy on Board

Diversity. In this process, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board will take into

consideration qualification and wide experience of the directors in the fields of textiles, manufacturing,

finance, regulatory, administration and legal segment apart from compliance of legal and contractual

requirements of the Company.

The total number of directors constituting the Board shall be in accordance with the Articles of

Association of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company shall have optimum combination

of executive and non-executive directors with at least one woman director and the composition of the

Board shall be in accordance with requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company, the

Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

the statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations of the Company.

4. Review of Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review the policy from time to time and make

recommendations on any required changes to the Board for consideration and approval.

For and on behalf of the Board

V.R. Venkataachalam

Chairman

[DIN: 00037524]

Registered Office:

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

Date : 13th August, 2021 CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

Place : Chennai E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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ANNEXURE III

BINNY MILLS LIMITED

CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

REGISTERED OFFICE: No.4, Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004

BINNY MILLS LIMTED – NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY RELATING TO THE

REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

(Pursuant to section 178 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013)

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)

Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Regulation 19 and Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations

requires the Board of Directors of every listed company to constitute the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of three or more non-executive

directors out of which not less than one-half shall be independent directors. The Chairperson of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be an independent director.

Principle and Rationale:

The Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be as follows:

- Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a

director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key

managerial personnel and other employees.

- Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment

and removal.

- Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

- Formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board.

- Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis

of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

Accordingly, in adherence to the above said requirements and in line with the Company’s philosophy

towards nurturing its human resources, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of

Directors of Binny Mills Limited herein below recommends to the Board of Directors for its adoption the

Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of

the Company as set out below:

Company Philosophy:

Binny Mills Ltd is an organisation committed to paying fair remuneration to its employees matching the

responsibilities and performance. The organisation does not discriminate on grounds of age, gender, colour,

race, ethnicity, language, caste, creed, economic or social status or disability. The Company’s committed

workforce, spread across its corporate office and factory locations, which has, over the years, transformed

Binny Mills Ltd into a consistent growing organisation, forms the backbone of the Company.
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Pay revisions and other benefits are designed in such a way to compensate good performance of the

employees of the Company and motivate them to do better in future.

Employee recognition schemes in the form of Production incentive and Service award have also been

introduced as successful tools in acknowledging their contribution.

The endeavour of the company is to acknowledge the contributions of its directors, key managerial personnel

and other employees with best compensation and benefits that appropriately rewards performance in line

with the regulatory and industry best practices.

Guiding Principles:

In the formulation of this Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also endeavoured to

ensure the guiding principles as prescribed u/s 178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013and Part D of Schedule

II of the Listing Regulations, are summarized hereunder:

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate

human resource including directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance

benchmarks;

c) Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate

to the working of the company and its goals;

d) Facilitating effective shareholder participation in key Corporate Governance decisions such as

the nomination and election of board members;

e) Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the longer term interests of the company and

its shareholders;

f) Ensuring a transparent board nomination process with the diversity of thought, experience,

knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board.

Nomination of the Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is dedicated to ensuring the

continuance of a dynamic and forward-thinking Board and recommend to the Board qualified candidates

for directorship.

Before recommending a nominee’s candidature to the Board for being appointed as a Director, the following

criteria set out may be applied as guidelines in considering potential nominees to the Board of Directors.

General Criteria

a) The background and qualifications of the Directors considered as a group should provide a

significant combination of experience, knowledge and abilities to assist the Board in fulfilling its

responsibilities.

b) Directors should be so selected such that the Board of Directors should remain as a diverse body,

with diversity reflecting gender, ethnic background and professional experience. Because a mix

of viewpoints and ideas enhances the Board’s ability to function effectively, the Committee shall

consider the diversity of the existing Board when considering potential nominees, so that the

Board maintains a body of directors from diverse professional and personal backgrounds.
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c) Potential nominees shall not be discriminated against on the basis of race, religion, national

origin, sex, disability, or any other basis prohibited by law.

d) Any nominee should be free of any conflict of interest which would violate any applicable law or

regulation or interfere with the performance of the responsibilities of a director.

e) Commitment of the nominee to understanding the Company and its industry, embracing the

Company’s values to help shape its vision, mission and strategic direction including oversight of

risk management and internal control.

f) Commitment of the nominee to spending the time necessary to function effectively as a Director,

including attending and participating in Board meetings and its Committee meetings.

Specific Criteria

a) Demonstrated business acumen, experience and ability to use sound judgment and to contribute

to the effective oversight of the business and financial affairs of a large or medium sized,

multifaceted, Indian Company.

b) The nominee reflects the right corporate tone and culture and excels at board-management

relationships.

c) Experience in strategic planning and managing multidisciplinary responsibilities, the ability to

navigate among diverse professional groups and points of view, a track record of communicating

effectively in a global environment, and high standards of integrity and professional conduct.

d) Nominees understand and endeavour to balance the interests of shareholders and / or other

stakeholders and put the interests of the company above self-interest. He/she has demonstrated

a commitment to transparency and disclosure.

e) He/ she is committed to superior corporate performance, consistently striving to go beyond the

legal and/or regulatory governance requirements to enhance, not just protect, shareholder value.

f) Nominee contributes to effective governance through superior, constructive relationships with the

Executive Directorate and management.

Remuneration of the Directors:

The Company strives to provide fair compensation to directors, taking into consideration industry

benchmarks, Company’s performance vis-à-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered, performance/ track

record, macroeconomic review on remuneration packages of heads of other similar sized companies.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the company, shall at all times be determined, in accordance

with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Appointment and Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole time- Director:

The terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration payable to the Managing Director and the

Whole-time Director(s) shall be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the

Board for its approval which shall be subject to approval by shareholders at the next general meeting of the

Company and by the Central Government in case such appointment is at variance to the conditions specified

in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. Approval of the Central Government is not necessary if the

appointment is made in accordance with the conditions specified in Schedule V to the Act.
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In terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Company may appoint a person as its Managing

Director or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding 5 (years) at a time. The executive directors may

be paid remuneration either by way of a monthly payment or at a specified percentage of the net profits of

the Company or partly by one way and partly by the other.

The break-up of the pay scale, performance bonus and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s

contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by

the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and shall be within the overall remuneration approved

by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

While recommending the remuneration payable to a Managing/ Whole-time Director, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee shall, inter alia, have regard to the following matters:

* Financial and operating performance of the Company

* Relationship between remuneration and performance

* Industry/ sector trends for the remuneration paid to similar executives.

Annual Increments to the Managing/ Whole Time Director(s) shall be within the slabs approved by the

Shareholders. Increments shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at times it

desires to do so but preferably on an annual basis.

Insurance Premium as Part of Remuneration:

Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its managing director, whole-time director, manager,

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for indemnifying any of them against

any liability in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which

they may be guilty in relation to the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as

part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.

However, if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part

of the remuneration.

Remuneration of Independent Directors:

Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of

* Sitting fees for participation in the Board and other meetings

* Reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings

* Commission as approved by the Shareholders of the Company

Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board may decide

the sitting fee payable to independent directors. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the

maximum permissible under the Companies Act, 2013.

Remuneration to Directors in other capacity:

The remuneration payable to the directors including managing or whole-time director or manager shall be

inclusive of the remuneration payable for the services rendered by him in any other capacity except the

following:
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(a)  The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

(b) In the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the director possesses the requisite

qualification for the practice of the profession.

Evaluation of the Directors:

As members of the Board, the performance of the individual Directors as well as the performance of the

entire Board and its Committees is required to be formally evaluated annually.

Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 also mandates the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

to carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

In developing the methodology to be used for evaluation on the basis of best standards and methods

meeting international parameters, the Board / Committee may take the advice of an independent professional

consultant.

Nomination and Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (other than Managing / whole time

directors), key executives and senior management:

The executive management of a company is responsible for the day to day management of a company.

The Companies Act, 2013 has used the term “key managerial personnel” (KMP) to define the executive

management.

The KMPs are the point of first contact between the company and its stakeholders. While the Board of

Directors are responsible for providing the oversight, it is the key managerial personnel and the senior

management who are responsible for not just laying down the strategies but for its implementation as well.

The Companies Act, 2013 has, for the first time, recognized the concept of Key Managerial Personnel. As

per section 2(51) “key managerial personnel”, in relation to a company, means—

(i) The Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;

(ii) The whole-time director;

(iii) The Chief Financial Officer;

(iv) The company secretary; and

(v) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

Among the KMPs, the remuneration of the CEO or the Managing Director and the Whole time Director(s),

shall be governed by the Section on Remuneration of the Directors of this Policy dealing with

“Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole time- Director”.

Apart from the directors, the remuneration of

* All the Other KMPs such as the company secretary or any other officer that may be prescribed

under the statute from time to time; and

* “Senior Management” of the Company defined in the clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the

Stock Exchanges i.e. personnel who are members of its core management team excluding the

Board of Directors. Senior executives one level below the Board i.e. President cadre

Shall be determined by the Human Resources Department of the Company in consultation with the Managing

Director and/ or the Whole time Director.
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The remuneration determined for all the above said senior personnel shall be in line with the Company’s

philosophy to provide fair compensation to key - executive officers based on their performance and

contribution to the Company and to provide incentives that attract and retain key executives, instill a long-

term commitment to the Company, and develop a pride and sense of Company ownership, all in a manner

consistent with shareholder interests.

The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension

scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided by the Company’s HR department.

Decisions on Annual Increments of the Senior Personnel shall be decided by the Human Resources

Department in consultation with the Managing Director and/ or the Whole time Director of the Company.

Remuneration of other employees:

Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the employees is

determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, including professional experience,

responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions.

The Company considers it essential to provide incentives to the workforce to ensure adequate and

reasonable compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall ensure that the level of

remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who perform according to set expectations for the

employee.

The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may be combined to

ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package. The annual increments to the remuneration

paid to the employees shall be determined based on the annual appraisal carried out by the Head of

Departments of various departments.

Decisions on Annual Increments shall be made on the basis of this annual appraisal.

General:

This Policy shall apply to all future employment of Company’s Senior Management including Key Managerial

Personnel and Board of Directors.

Any or all the provisions of this Policy would be subject to the revision/ amendment in the Companies Act,

2013, related rules and regulations, guidelines and the Listing Agreement on the subject as may be notified

from time to time.

Any such amendment shall automatically have the effect of amending this Policy without the need of any

approval by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/ or the Board of Directors.

For and on behalf of the Board

V.R. Venkataachalam

Chairman

[DIN: 00037524]

Registered Office:

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

Date : 13th August, 2021 CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

Place : Chennai E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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ANNEXURE IV

Form No.MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To

The Members

Binny Mills Limited

(CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807)

Chennai 600 004.

1. I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate practices by BINNY MILLS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the

company). Secretarial Audit was conducted with reference to the  required books and  records made

available   to me, in a manner that  provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and I am expressing my opinion thereon.

2. Based on my verification of the Company’s  books, records, papers, minutes books, various forms

and returns filed and other records and returns maintained by the company and the discussion I had

with its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby

report, on the basis of such records and information so provided, that in my opinion and understanding,

the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31st March 2021, appears

to have complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also in my limited review the

company has proper and adequate Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the forms and returns as filed, books including minutes books, papers and other

records maintained by the Company and made available to me, for the audit period up to the financial

year ended 31st March, 2021 according to the applicable provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder  as applicable;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ( SCRA) and Rules made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. The following guidelines and regulations stipulated under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (SEBI ACT)

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011;

ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,

1992;

iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2009;
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iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India( Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regualtions,2008;

vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

vii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

and

viii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

5. Other applicable laws on the operation of the company and the rules made thereunder and I have

examined the systems and procedures of the company as placed to ensure the compliance with

general laws like Labour Laws, Employees Provident Funds Act, Employees State Insurance Act,

considering and relying upon representations made by the company and its Officers for systems and

mechanisms formed by the company for compliance under these laws and other applicable sector

specific Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations applicable to the company and its observance by them.

I have examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

2. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015

The company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Standards,

Guidelines etc., mentioned above during the period under review, except those matters noted hereunder:

1. The Company has to appoint adequate number Independent Directors in order to comply with Regulation

17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

2. During the audit period, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer got relieved on 31st July,

2019 and substitutes had not been appointed till 9th June, 2020. The post of Company Secretary has

been filled up on 10th June, 2020 but the post of Chief Financial Officer is yet to be filled up. The

company is advised to fill this position forthwith.

I further report that the related documents that I have come across show that the Board of Directors of

the company is constituted as per applicable provisions with proper balance of Executive Directors,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors subject to my observation made at (i) above, and

the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under

review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and adequate  notices have been

given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent

at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

I also report that board’s decisions have been arrived at and recorded   in the Minutes Book in line with

the stipulations prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder  and the Secretarial

Standards in operation.
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 I further report that there appears to be adequate systems and processes in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that my audit is confined only to verifying adequacy of systems and procedures that are

in place for ensuring proper compliance by the company and I am not responsible for any lapse in

compliance on the part of the company.

Place : Chennai

Date : 26.07.2021

K.ELANGOVAN

FCS 1808

CP NO. 3522

PR 892/2020

UDIN:F001808C000690386

This Report is to be read with my testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an

integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

To

The Members,

Binny Mills Limited

(CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807)

My report of even date is to be read along with this supplementary testimony.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of Management of the company. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes that were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was

done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that

the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts

of the company.

4. Wherever required, I have consulted the Management and Officers of the company about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings  of events etc.,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations,

standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to the verification of

procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company..

Place : Chennai

Date : 26.07.2021

K.ELANGOVAN

FCS 1808

CP NO. 3522

PR 892/2020

UDIN:F001808C000690386
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ANNEXURE V

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Pursuant to Para E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations &

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members,

Binny Mills Limited

(CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807)

We have examined the compliance conditions of Corporate Governance by Binny Mills Ltd (“the Company”)

for the year ended 31st March 2021, as stipulated in Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, pursuant to the Listing Agreement

of the said Company with the BSE Limited.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our

examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring

the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of

opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify

that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, except :

that the Company does not have the adequate number of Independent Directors to comply with the

requirement of the Proviso to Regulation 17(1) (b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Further since the vacation of the office of Chief Financial Officer on 31st July, 2019,no appointment was

made towards such position till the date of this report.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor

the efficiency or the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s NSR & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.:010522S

N. Sowrirajan

Proprietor

Membership No: 207820

UDIN: 21207820AAACZ5381

Place : Chennai

Date : 13-08-2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

(Pursuant to regulation 34(2) (e) and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations)

This report is part of the Directors’ Report

Indian Economy, Covid-19 Pandemic and Lockdown

The Indian economy decreased at 7.3% per cent in 2020-21 when compared to 4.2 per cent increase

registered in 2019-20, as the Covid-19 pandemic adversely affected the economic activity in the last fiscal

year, especially manufacturing and construction sectors.

India’s GDP dropped by 24% in the first quarter of Financial year 2020-21 i.e. April-June 2020. Further in the

second quarter July-September 2020, the economy reduced by 7.4%. While in the third and fourth quarters

i.e. October 2020-March 2021 there was a below average recovery with GDP rising 0.5% and 1.6% respectively.

This means that overall rate of contraction in India was 7.3% for the Financial Year 2020-21.

During the year 2020-21 the agriculture sector have shown a positive growth of 3.4 per cent compared to

other sectors which showed a decrease in growth.The share of agriculture in GDP increased to 19.9 per

cent in 2020-21 from 17.8 per cent in 2019-20.

However, the growth rate in the manufacturing sector has plunged to -39.3% in Q1 of 2020-21. For

consecutive period manufacturing growth rate has declined, indicating crisis in the sector worsened by

the pandemic-induced lockdowns. Services sector activity had moderated.

Overall export and imports had shrunk by 7.4% and 18% respectively. India’s current account Deficit (CAD)

narrowed to 1.0 per cent of GDP in Q-4 2020-21 from 0.3 per cent of GDP in Q-3 2020-21.The current

account deficit in Q-4 2020-21 was primarily on account of a higher trade deficit and lower net invisible

receipts than in the corresponding period of the previous year.

The novel Corona virus outbreak originated in Wuhan province of China. The World Health

Organization(WHO) declared novel Corona virus as pandemic on 11thMarch, 2020.

Over a year the pandemic has taken its toll on not just human life, but business and financial markets too,

the extent of which is undefinable. In many countries, Including India, there has been severe disruption to

regular business operations due to lockdowns, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans,

quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.

On 24th March, 2020, the Indian government announced 21 day lockdown which was further extended by

19 days and 14 days across the country to contain the spread of virus. The nationwide lock down had

lasted for 68 days till 31st May, 2020. Further the State Government extended the lockdown from June 19th

to 30th 2020 in four districts including Chennai. The pandemic led to collapse of demand across both urban

and rural areas from March 2020. The biggest blow from the pandemic has been to private consumption,

which accounts largely of domestic demand. The nationwide lockdown paralyzed economic and social

activities and resulted in severe blow to economy. In order to strike the balance between the economic

priorities and to save the country from recession and large scale unemployment, the Government of India

took decision to progressively unwind the lockdown (Unlocking-1) with effective from June 1, 2020. Further,

unlocking was happening in phases by providing relaxations.

Opportunities and threats and Industry Structure and developments

The Company is engaged in retail sale of textile products. The Company’s future relies on the Textile

industry’s growth.
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Government Initiatives

The government has initiated special measures to help improve the conditions in textile sector due to

Covid-19 pandemic and to boost production, marketing and job opportunities in the sector.

The Honourable Finance Minister highlighted the Government’s vision and thought to build Atma Nirbhar

Bharat (Self-Reliant India) to spur growth in this tough time by announcing different measures including

MSMEs and NBFCs.

The Tax measures announced by the Hon’ble Finance Minister include reduction in TDS and TCS rated by

25% of the existing rates aimed at releasing liquidity of Rs. 50,000 crore.

The Reserve Bank of India took measures to augment systemic liquidity, tightened asset and liability

management framework, eased flow of funds by relaxing external commercial borrowings (ECB) guidelines

and strengthened governance and risk management structures.

Textile Industry – Structure and Developments:

The textile industry plays a very significant role in the economy of the country by contributing over 13 per

cent of the industrial output, 12 per cent of the export earnings and over 2.3 per cent to the GDP of India.

The Budget estimates for the textile and clothing sector for 2021-22 is Rs. 3,631.64 crore which is about

10% higher than previous year’s revised budget of Rs. 3,300 crores in 2020-21.

One of the main reasons for the slump in demand for the textile industry has been the rapidly falling

consumption pattern of the middle class and the rural belts. The budget has opened avenues to boost

purchasing power.

The textile industry has been one of the leading employment generators in our country. With easing up

business operations and aiding technological developments, the Government has opened up other avenues

for indigenous manufacturers.

Threats perceived:

The biggest threat to the Indian Textile Industry is the entry of low quality products of cheap prices from

other countries. Textile Industry is very labour intensive one where job creation happens. What we have to

see is the labour reforms, especially in a sector that is manpower-intensive. We need to have competitiveness

in terms of costs as well. We are dependent a lot of natural fibers that are imported. Today, we have the

highest interest rates in the world. Our power costs are not cheap either. Though the entry of products from

China, the biggest competitor to Textile Industry, is banned, we have got Vietnam and Bangladesh too as

a competitor. We need to get competitive towards the rest of the world. It’s our competitive advantage,

which we should have had, is now slipping away. Further, the unexpected Novel Corona was also a big

threat to the industry reducing the sales and market. The Covid-19 pandemic created a huge impact on the

production and sales of the industry.

The sector has the capability to grow and create more jobs. Competitiveness is a big challenge faced in

both garments as well as in the manufacturing fabric space. These are the sectors that need a positive

change. The other is just free trade pacts. India has to get into the global stage, as the global trade pacts

are crumbling around us and we need to get more into bilateral agreements with some trading blocks and

use those to our advantage because we have all the supply sources, manpower, capability, and the products.

We need to unleash that power else the others would outstrip us in terms of their pace of growth.
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Risks and concerns

The company is engaged in trading business. Hence, the risks associated with the stiff competition in retail

textile business are the major risk for the Company. But, the company has built up reputation among the

buyers and has created a brand image for its products. Hence, it is confident of mitigating the effects of the

risks.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has proper and adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and nature of

operations, to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised,

recorded and reported properly and that all applicable statutes and corporate policies are duly complied

with.

Human Resources Development and Industrial Relations

The Company attaches considerable importance to Human Resource Development and harmonious

industrial relations. There are senior and experienced professionals managing the operations of its divisions.

The company takes all efforts to train its employees to make them a skilled employee. The overall industrial

relations, during the year, were cordial.

Environmental protection

The Environmental Policy of your company is maintaining clean and green environment and ecofriendly

atmosphere. Your company has been complying with applicable environmental regulations and preventing

pollution in all operations. Your company continues to strive for energy saving and conservation of natural

reserves.

Risk Management

Risk Management is an ongoing process. Constitution of the Risk Management Committee is not applicable

to the company. However with regard to the exposure of risk in conducting the business, the Company is

exposed mainly to Credit Risk and Cash Management Risk in its business operations. The Company has

taken over the business of erstwhile Binny Ltd along with the respective business division employees.

Their expertise in dealing with suppliers and customers has helped to mitigate the Credit Risk. The sales

collections at the showrooms of the Company are mainly in the form of cash. This exposes our Company

to cash management risk. In order to mitigate the same, the Company ensures efficient and secured

collection at its showrooms. The cash collections are deposited in the Company’s bank account the next

day. The Company has also adopted stringent checks and internal controls at its showrooms. At the Head

Office of the Company, each day’s collections are monitored and reconciled on a daily basis. Such procedures

and internal controls has helped to mitigate Cash Management Risk.

Segment wise and Product wise performance

The details are given in the Para ‘Operations’ in the Directors’ Report

Outlook:

The details of outlook are given in the Para ‘Outlook and Opportunities’ in the Directors’ Report.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:
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The details are given in the Para ‘Operations’ in the Directors’ Report.

Details of any change in the Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year

along with a detailed explanation thereof:

There is no return on Net Worth.

Cautionary Statement

This report contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties including, but not

limited to, risks inherent in the Company’s growth strategy, dependence on certain businesses, dependence

on availability of qualified and trained manpower, economic conditions, government policies and other

factors. Actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied

in such forward looking statements. This report should be read in conjunction with the financial statements

included herein and the notes thereto.

For and on behalf of the Board

V.R. Venkataachalam

Chairman

[DIN: 00037524]

Registered Office:

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

Date : 13th August, 2021 CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

Place : Chennai E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Pursuant to regulation 34 (3) and Para C of Schedule V of the Listing regulations)

The Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 on compliance by the Company with the Corporate

Governance provisions as prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) is given below.

1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance Code:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance Code aims at enhancing the shareholders’

value in the Company in the long-term through assisting the Board and the senior management in

taking prudent business decisions and prudent financial management. It also aims at transparency

and professional approach in all decisions and activities of the Company. The Company’s philosophy

is also for achieving excellence in Corporate Governance by conforming to the prevalent guidelines

on Corporate Governance and excelling, wherever it is possible. It also provides for periodical review

of the existing systems and controls for further improvements.

2. Board of Directors:

Composition:

The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with regulation 17 of the Listing regulations

except that the company has to appoint two more independent directors. The Directors on the Board

are experienced, competent and highly respected persons in their respective field.

The present strength of the Board is eight directors. The Board comprises of an optimum combination

of Executive and Non-Executive directors, with seven directors being Non-Executive directors, including

the Non-Executive Chairman. There are three Independent Directors, who exercise independent

judgement in the Board’s deliberations, discussions and decisions. Not less than fifty percent of the

Board comprises of Non-Executive directors. The regular Non-Executive Chairman is a Promoter of

the Company and consequently one-half of the Board should comprise of Independent Directors.

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam is the Chairman of the Board and accordingly the Non-Executive Chairman

of the Company and Shri V. Rajasekaran is the Managing Director of the Company.

The day to day management of the affairs of the Company is entrusted with the senior management

personnel, headed by the Managing Director, who functions under the overall supervision, direction

and control of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Independent Directors:

The Company has three Independent Directors and they have affirmed compliance with the

requirements of the Listing regulations. Their appointment is for a term of five consecutive years on

the Board of the Company. They shall be eligible for reappointment for another term of five consecutive

years on passing of a special resolution by the Company. Their reappointment for a second term of 5

consecutive financial years from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2024 was approvedat the 12th Annual

General Meeting by way of a special resolution.

The Independent Directors have made disclosures confirming that there is no material, financial

and / or commercial transactions between Independent Directors and the Company which could

have potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.
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As provided in the proviso under Regulation 17 (A) (1) of the Listing Regulations, as of 31st March,

2021, none of the independent directors of the company served as an independent director in more

than seven listed entities and as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations none of the directors is

a member of more than ten committees or acting as a Chairperson of more than five committees

across all listed companies in which he / she is a director.

Performance evaluation by the Board of directors of its own performance, the Directors individually

and that of Independent Directors:

As provided in section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has carried out an annual

performance evaluation of its own performance and that of the Directors, individually. As provided in

regulation 17 (10) of the Listing regulations, the Board has carried out an annual performance

evaluation of the Independent Directors. The details of the evaluation procedures are given under

the heading ‘Performance Evaluation’ in this Report.

Separate meeting of the Independent Directors:

As provided in regulation 25 (3) of the Listing regulations, a separate meeting of the Independent

Directors of the Company was held on 8th February 2021 to evaluate the performance of Non-

Independent Directors and the Board of directors as a whole, to review the performance of the

Chairmanand every Independent Director, who were evaluated on parameters such as functioning of

the Board, frequency of the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, attendance, level of engagement

and contribution, independence of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its

stakeholders. The meeting was attended by all Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction on the performance and effectiveness of the

Board, individual Non-Independent Board membersand the Chairman. They also expressed

satisfaction with the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company

management and the Board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

FamiliarizationProgramme for Independent Directors:

Pursuant to regulation 25 (7) of the Listing regulations, the Company had familiarization programmes

for the Independent Directors, on a continuous basis, about the operations of the Company and other

details from time to time, inter alia, as follows:

1. The Independent Directors were informed about their roles, responsibilities and duties under

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing regulations through Board papers and appointment

letter given to them.

2. Presentations were made and discussions were held from time to time on major developments

in the areas of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing regulations.

3. The Directors, including Independent Directors, were updated about the industry, the Company’s

business model, various business activities, competition faced by the Company and such other

issues through presentations at the Board meetings.
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As required to be disclosed by Para C (2) (g) of Schedule V of the Listing regulations, the details of

such familiarizationprogrammes has been disclosed on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com

as provided in regulation 46 (2) (i) of the Listing regulations.

Board functioning and procedure:

The Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring good governance and functioning of the company. The

Board’s role, functions, responsibilities and accountabilities are clearly defined. In addition to its

primary role of setting corporate goals and monitoring corporate performance, it directs and guides

the activities of the Management towards the set goals and sets accountability, with a view to ensure

that the corporate philosophy and objective is accomplished.  It also sets standards of corporate

behaviour and ensures ethical behaviour at all times and strict compliance with the laws and

regulations. The Board holds periodic meetings every year to discuss, review and decide upon the

matters such as policy formulation, setting up of goals, appraisal of the performance of the company,

its future plans, strategies and other pertinent issues relating to the company. The Board periodically

reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the company prepared by the Company as well

as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances. The Board satisfies itself

that plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to senior management

positions. Some of the powers of the Board have also been delegated to Committee(s), which monitors

the day-to-day affairs relating to operational matters. The Board thus exercises close control over the

overall functioning of the Company with a view to enhance the Shareholder value.

Information placed before Board of Directors:

The information, as required under Part A of Schedule II of the Listing regulations, is placed before

the Board of directors. The agenda for the Board Meetings setting out the business to be transacted

at the meeting along with the explanatory notes on the agenda items, for consideration at the Board

Meetings, are circulated to the directors, seven days before the Board Meeting date, to enable the

directors to have a proper study and deliberation on the agenda matters, to take appropriate decisions.

In some instances, documents are tabled at the meetings and presentations are also made by the

respective executives on the matters related to them at the Board or Committee meetings. The Directors

have complete freedom to express their opinions at the Board Meetings and the Board takes decisions

after detailed discussions.

Number of Board Meetings held during the year and the dates on which they were held: (Pursuant to

Para C (2) (d) of Schedule V of the Listing regulations)

As prescribed in regulation 17(2) of the Listing regulations, during the year four Board Meetings were

held on 26th June 2020, 30th July 2020, 9thNovember 2020 and 8th February 2021 with a maximum

time gap of 180 days between any two meetings.

The thirteenth Annual General Meeting was held on 25th September 2020.

Membership in Committees:

As required by Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations none of Directors is a member of more than ten

committees or acting as Chairperson of more than five committees across all listed entities in which

he is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by the

Directors.
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Further, for the purpose of reckoning the aforesaid limit only 3 committees, viz., the Audit Committee,

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Stakeholders’ Relationship committee alone

are considered and committees in Public Limited companies alone are considered.

Code of conduct:

The Board has laid down the Code of Conduct (“Code”) for the Board members and Senior

Management Personnel of the Company as required under regulation 17(5) (a) of the Listing

regulations. Pursuant to regulation 26(3) of the Listing regulations, all members of the Board of

directors and senior management personnel of the company have affirmed compliance with the Code

for the financial year ended 31st March 2021. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the Managing

Director (CEO), as required in Para D of Schedule V of the Listing regulations, is included in the

‘Report on Corporate Governance’ which forms part of this Annual Report The Code has also been

posted on the website of the company www.bmlindia.com as provided in regulation 46 (2) (d) of the

Listing regulations.

The Code suitably incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies

Act, 2013, as required under regulation 17(5) (b) of the Listing regulations. The Code also lays down

that an Independent Director shall be held liable, only in respect of such acts of omission or commission

by the Company which had occurred with his knowledge, attributable through Board processes, and

with his consent or connivance or where he had not acted diligently with respect to the provisions

contained in the Listing Agreement as provided in regulation 25(5) of the Listing regulations..

Composition and category of Directors, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during

the year and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the number of other Boards or

Board Committees in which the director is a member or Chairperson: (Pursuant to Para C (2)

(a), (b) and (c) of Schedule V of the Listing regulations)

Composition of Board of Directors as of 31st March, 2021

The details are given in the Table below:

Name of Director Category Number of Number of Number of
Board other company other Board

meetings Attendance Boards in which Committees in
attended at the last the director which the
during AGM  is a member director is a

the year member

or chairman

Promoter, 17

Shri V.R.Venkataachalam Non- Executive (Public: 2
DIN: 00037524 Chairman 1 No Private: 15) 1

Managing
Shri V. Rajasekaran Director – 4 Yes 5 1
DIN: 00037006 Executive and (Public: 2

Non Independent Private: 3)
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Name of Director Category Number of Number of Number of
Board other company other Board

meetings Attendance Boards in which Committees in
attended at the last the director which the
during AGM  is a member director is a

the year member

or chairman

Shri V. Sengutuvan Promoter, 1 No 19 -

DIN: 00053629 Non- Executive (Public: 3

Private: 16)

Mrs. V. Samyuktha Promoter, 1 No 13 -

DIN: 02691981 Non- Executive (Public: 2

Woman Director Private: 11)

Shri S. Natarajan Promoter, 1 Yes 14 5

DIN: 00155988 Non- Executive (Public: 4
(see Note 6 below) Private: 11)

Shri S. Varatharajan Non- Executive 3 Yes 3 -
DIN: 01819133 and Independent (Private: 3)

Shri M. Parthasarathi Non-Executive 4 Yes 3 2
DIN: 03209175 and Independent (Public: 1

Private: 2)

Shri N. Jaiganesh Non-Executive 1 No - -

DIN: 06969618 and Independent

Note:

1. While considering the total number of directorship of directors, their directorships in private companies

and Section 8 companies have been included and their directorship in the Company has been excluded.

2. The membership and chairmanship of directors in committees do not include their membership and

chairmanship in the committees of the Company.

3. Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Promoter and Non-Executive Chairman, is the father of Shri V. Sengutuvan,

Promoter and Non- Executive Director and Mrs. V. Samyuktha, Promoter and Non- Executive Woman

Director. The other directors are not related to any otherdirector.

4. Shri V. R. Venkataachalam, Promoter and Non-Executive Chairman, holds 15,40,254 equity shares of

Rs.10/- each aggregating to Rs.1,54,02,540/- and 32,000 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference of

Rs.5/- each aggregating to Rs.1,60,000/-, in the Company.

5. Shri V. Sengutuvan, Promoter and Non- executive Director, holds 74,600 equity shares of Rs.10/-

each aggregating to Rs.7,46,000/- and 32,000 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference of Rs.5/-

each aggregating to Rs.1,60,000/-, in the Company.

6. Shri. S. Natarajan, Promoter and Non- executive Director - Category of directorship and names of

listed entities in which he is a director:

Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director in Binny Ltd and UCAL Fuel Systems Ltd
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7. No other director is a director in any listed entity.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations the Board of Directors

has identified the following requisite skills/ expertise and competencies for the effective functioning of

the Company which are currently available with the Board:

S. Name of the Director Core skills/ expertise/ competencies

No. and Designation

1 Shri V.R. Venkataachalam Industrialist. Wide experience in promoting companies.

Chairman and Non-executive Long experience in managing companies and expertise in

decision making process.

2 Shri V. Rajasekaran A qualified Chemical Engineer. Holds Master Degrees in

Managing Director & CEO M.Tech and MBA. Wide experience in managing business,

arranging finance for project financing as well as working

capital financing. Experienced in strategic decision making

and an able administrator.

3 Shri V. Sengutuvan Industrialist. Varied experience in managing diverse

Promoter and Non-Executive businesses and in administration functions.

4 Mrs. V. Samyuktha Industrialist. Wide experience in administration functions

Promoter and Non-Executive and expertise in textile industry.

5 Shri S. Natarajan Chartered Accountant. Wide and varied experience in

Promoter and Non-Executive financial services business of Companies in Shriram Group.

Expertise in financing and business development.

6 Shri S. Varatharajan Experience in the areas of Corporate Strategy and financial

Independent Director services. Expertise in administration functions.

7 Shri M. Parthasarathi Company Executive. Wide and varied experience in

Independent Director business management and administration. Expertise in

strategic decision making and corporate finance.

8 Shri N. Jaiganesh Experience in management and administration functions.

Independent Director

Pursuant to Clause C (2) (i) of Schedule V read with regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, in the

opinion of the Board all the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations

and are independent of the management.

Performance Evaluation: (Pursuant to section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Para C (13)

of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations)

As provided in section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013, Board has carried out the annual

performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the

working of its Committees for the financial year 2020-21. As provided in regulation 17 (10) of the Listing

regulations, Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of the Independent Directors.
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The evaluation process was carried out through a structured evaluation procedures covering various

aspects of the functioning of the Board and its Committees viz., The sufficiency of the existing

Committees in relation to the existing size and nature of operations, their roles in decision making,

frequency of their meetings, attendance at the meetings, their level of engagement and participation

at the meetings, the exercise of independence of judgement, performance of their duties and obligations,

their contribution in enhancing the Board’s overall effectiveness and implementation of good Corporate

Governance practices.

The Board has expressed its satisfaction with the evaluation process and also of the performance of

all the Directors, Board and its Committees which reflected the overall engagement of the Board and

its Committees with the Company.

The observations made during the evaluation process were noted and based on the outcome of the

evaluation and feedback of the Directors, the Board and the management agreed on various action

points to be implemented in subsequent meetings. The observations included those relating to further

improvement in participation and deliberations at the meetings and conduct of the meetings, circulation

of board presentations and its content.

Policy for prohibition of Insider Trading:

In compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, (as amended

from time to time) and to preserve the confidentiality and prevent misuse of unpublished price sensitive

information, the Company has adopted a Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading for Directors/ Designated

persons of the Company, relating to dealings by them in the securities of the Company.

The Code also provides for periodical disclosures from Directors and Designated persons as well as

pre-clearance of transactions by such persons.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), vide notification no.EBI/LAD-NRO/GN/201/59

has notified SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, with effect from 1st

April 2019. The Company, has, accordingly, amended its Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading and

Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

3. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the

Companies Act 2013 read with Regulation 18 and Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

The following Non-Executive directors are the members of the Audit Committee:

Shri S. Varatharajan, Chairman of the Committee

Shri M. Parthasarathi; and

Shri N. Jaiganesh;

All the members of the Audit Committee are Independent Directors. The members of the committee

are financially literate with ability to read and understand the financial statement. The Chairman of the

committee has related financial management expertise by way of experience in financial management

in his field of business. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities and shall function in such

manner as provided in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18(3) and Part C of

Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

During the year four Audit Committee Meetings were held on 26th June 2020, 30th July 2020, 9th November

2020 and 8th February 2021. Requisite quorum was present for all the meetings held during the year.

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

The Statutory Auditors and Managing Director and the Head of Accounts Department of the Company

and invitees, if any, attend the Audit Committee meeting to provide information and clarifications.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the company.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter alia includes:

l Overseeing the financial reporting process.

l To ensure proper disclosure in the quarterly, half yearly and Annual Financial Statements.

l To recommend appointment, re-appointment of auditors and the fixing of their remuneration.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.

l Reviewing, with the management, the Financial Statements before submission to the Board.

l Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacies of

the internal control systems.

l Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including the structure of the internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,

coverage and frequency of internal audit.

l Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds.

l Discussing with Internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on.

l Reviewing the findings of any internal examinations by the internal auditors into matters where

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material

nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

l Discussing with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

l To discuss with the management, the senior internal audit executives and the statutory auditor/

s the Company’s major risk exposures and guidelines and policies to govern the processes by

which risk assessment and risk management is undertaken by the Company, including discussing

the Company’s major financial risk exposures and steps taken by management to monitor and

mitigate such exposures and from time to time conferring with another Committee/s of the Board

about risk exposures and policies within the scope of such other Committee’s oversight.

l To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
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l Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole time Finance Director or any other person

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,

experience & background, etc. of the candidate.

l Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit

process.

l Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.

l Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

l To review the financial Statements.

l Granting omnibus approval to related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of

business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions.

l Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted by the Board as per the

requirements of the provisions of Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of

the Listing Regulations.

The following Non-Executive directors are the members of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee:

Shri S. Varatharajan,Chairman of the Committee

Shri M. Parthasarathi; and

Shri N. Jaiganesh;

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. All the other members of the Committee

are also Independent Directors. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Committee.

Functions of the Committee:

i. It shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence

of a director.

ii. It shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their

appointment or removal.

iii. It shall formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

iv. It shall carry out an evaluation of every directors’ performance.

v. It shall devise a policy on Board diversity.

vi. It shall recommend to the Board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors,

key managerial personnel and other employees. (Nomination and Remuneration Policy)
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Pursuant to the provisions of section 178(3) and (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part D Para A

(1) of Schedule II of the Listing regulations, the Committee has recommended to the Board a Policy

relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees which

is laid down in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and was approved at the Board Meeting

held on 30th January 2015. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also laid down, in the

Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the evaluation criteria for evaluation of directors including

independent directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is disclosed in the Annexure III to

the Directors’ Report

Remuneration of directors:

The Non-Executive and independent directors do not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions

with the company. At present no remuneration is paid to the Managing Director or any other director.

Payment of sitting fees to directors:

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs.5,000/- per meeting for attending the meetings

of the Board and Committees. The details of sitting fees paid in the year 2020-21 are as follows:

Director Sitting fees paid Rs.

Shri V. R. Venkataachalam 5,000

Shri V. Sengutuvan 5,000

Shri S. Varatharajan 40,000

Shri M. Parthasarathi 50,000

Shri N. Jaiganesh 35,000

Mrs. V. Samyuktha 5,000

Total 1,40,000

Since the Company does not pay any remuneration to any of its directors, there are no disclosures to

be made on the remuneration of directors with regard to elements of remuneration package of individual

directors and details of fixed component and performance linked incentives. The Company has not

entered into any service contract with any director which provides for notice period and severance

fees.

Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the period

over which accrued and over which exercisable:

At present the company does not have any Stock Option Scheme.

Disclosure of shares held by Non- executive directors:

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Non-Executive Chairman, holds 15,40,254 equity shares of Rs.10/- each

in the Company constituting 48.31% of the paid-up equity shares of the Company and 32,000 9%

Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.5/- each and Shri V. Sengutuvan, Director, holds

74,600 equity shares of Rs.10/- each in the Company constituting 2.34% of the paid-up equity shares
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of the Company and 32,000 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.5/- each. No

other Non-Executive directors hold equity shares in the Company.

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The “Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee” is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178

(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2018.

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee consist of following Non-Executive Independent directors

as the members:

Shri S. Varatharajan, Chairman of the Committee

Shri M. Parthasarathi;

Shri N. Jaiganesh

The company secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted to consider and resolve the grievances of

shareholders and other security holders of the Company. The Committee shall expedite the process

of share transfers. The Board has delegated the powers of registration of share transfers to the

committee. Any major transfers approved at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings are

placed before the Board.

The Committee in particular looks into:

l The listing of securities on stock exchanges.

l The shareholders’ and investors’ complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt

of dividends and matters related thereto and resolve the grievances.

l The matters that can facilitate better investor services and relations.

l Attending to investors’ queries and complaints regarding transfer, dividend, annual reports, etc.

l Attending to complaints of investors routed by SEBI (SCORES) /Stock Exchanges.

l The amounts transferable to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

l The profile of investors.

l Taking decision on waiver of requirement of obtaining the Succession Certificate/ Probate of

Will, on case to case basis, within the parameters set out by the Board.

Meetings of the committee:

All the members of the Committee attended all the meetings.

The status of investor grievances is monitored by the Committee periodically and the minutes of the

Committee are made available to the Board. The complaints received from the Shareholders, SEBI

(SCORES) / Stock Exchanges and others are reviewed and they are replied to by the Company /
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agents regularly. The status of the pending complaints as well as the

system of Redressal mechanism is reviewed by the Committee periodically.

Name and designation of compliance officer:

Compliance Officer: Ms. S. Sahana

Company Secretary

Phone:  044-24991518

Fax: 091-44-24991777

Email: binnymills@bmlindia.com

Shareholders’ / Investors complaints status: (1-4-2020 to 31-3-2021)

Particulars No. of complaints

Complaints pending as on 1st April, 2020: Nil

Complaints received during the period 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021 0

Complaints identified and reported under Regulation 13(3) of Listing regulation 0

Complaints disposed of during the year ended 31st March, 2021 0

Complaints unresolved as of 31st March, 2021 Nil

As on 31st March, 2021, no investor grievance has remained unattended/ pending for more than thirty

days.

The company’s Registrar and Share Transfer agents, viz., Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., also

redresses all shareholders’/Investors’ complaints/grievances.

All valid share transfers, received during the year ended 31st March 2021, have been acted upon.

There are no pending share transfers, both in physical form as well as in Demat category, as on 31st

March 2021.

6. General Body Meetings:

Location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings:

Year Date Time Location

2019-20 25-9-2020 3.30 P.M. Through Video Conferencing having the deemed

venue at ‘TCP Sapthagiri Bhavan’, No.4, (Old No.10),

Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004

2018-19 27-9-2019 3.30 P.M. ‘TCP Sapthagiri Bhavan’, No.4, (Old No.10),

Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004

2017-18 28-9-2018 3.30 P.M. ‘TCP Sapthagiri Bhavan’, No.4, (Old No.10),

Karpagambal Nagar, Mylapore, Chennai 600004
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a) In compliance with the Act, all the members were given an option at the 13thAGM held on 25-09-

2020, to vote through electronic means on all the resolutions of the Notice using the CDSL platform.

The Board of Directors had appointed Shri. P. Sriram (Membership No. FCS 4862), a Practicing

Company Secretary (PCS No.3310), Chennai, as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process

in a fair and transparent manner and all the resolutions were passed with requisite majority.

b) At the14thAnnual General Meeting to be held on Friday, the 24th September 2021 at 03.00 P.M.,

no special resolutions is proposed to be passed.

7. Disclosures:

(a) There are no materially significant related party transactions with the Company’s promoters,

directors, key managerial personnel, or their relatives, which may have potential conflict with the

interests of the Company at large. Disclosures on transactions with related parties, as required

under the relevant Indian Accounting Standard, have been included in in the Notes on Accounts

attached to the Financial Statements. A statement in summary form of transactions with related

parties in the ordinary course of business is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board

on quarterly basis. Omnibus approval has been obtained for transactions of repetitive nature.

The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party

Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com

None of the directors have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company except

the payment of sitting fees. The details of the transactions with Related Party are given in the

Notes to the Financial Statement.

(b) There are no instances of non-compliance by the Company; no penalties or strictures were

imposed on the company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter

relating to capital markets during the last three years, except the following instances:

1. The Company has to appoint two more independent directors to comply with the

requirements of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

2. Shri. A. Sampath resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

with effect from 31st July, 2019 and the post remained vacant till 9th June 2020 in the

financial year under purview. Ms. S. Sahana was appointed as the Company secretary

with effect from 10th June 2020.

(c) The Company has adopted Code of Conduct (‘Code’) for the Members of the Board and Senior

Management Personnel as required under Regulation 17(5) of the Listing Regulation. All the

Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance of the Code.

The Annual Report of the Company contains a declaration to this effect signed by the Managing

Director. Further, the Code of Conduct of the Company applicable to the Board and

SeniorManagement Personnel is also posted on the website of the company.

(d) The Company has adopted the Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary

mechanism for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been

denied access to the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism as per Regulation 22 of Listing

Regulation ensures standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. The

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism is uploaded on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com
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(e) The Company does not have any material listed/unlisted subsidiary company as defined in

Regulation 24 of Listing Regulation. However, the Company has framed the Policy on Material

Subsidiaries and the same is uploaded on the Company’s website www.bmlindia.com

(f) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as stipulated in Listing

Regulations and fulfilled the non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in discretionary

requirements as specified in Part E of the Schedule II of Listing Regulations of the following:

1. The Board: The Company has a non-executive Chairman and Chairman’s office is

maintained at the Company’s expense.

2. Shareholder Rights: The half yearly financial performance and a summary of the significant

events in the last six-months are not sent to each household of shareholders.

3. Modified opinion in Audit Report: The Company’s financial statements are with unmodified

audit opinion.

4. Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: The Chairman of the Board is a Non-executive

Director and his position is separate from that of the Managing Director.

5. Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

(g) The Company has complied with all the corporate governance requirements specified in

Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI Regulation

except that the Company has to appoint two more independent directors to comply with the

requirements of regulation 17 (1) of the Listing regulations.

(h) The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance Report as

contained in Clause C (2) to (10) of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing

Regulations.

(i) No equity shares of the Company were suspended from trading during the financial year 2020-21.

(j) A Certificate has been issued by M/s Elangovan Associates,Practising Company Secretaries,

confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by the Board / the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

(k) The Company has not raised funds through Preferential allotments or Qualified Institutions

Placement under Regulation 32 (7A) of the Listing Regulations.

(l) In the financial year 2020-21 Board has accepted all recommendations of its Committees.

(m) The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company to the Statutory auditors are as

follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs. lakhs)

Statutory audit fees 1.50

Tax audit fees -

Certification fees -

(n) The disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 forms part of the Directors Report.
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Share Capital Audit

Share Capital Audit as required under Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants)

Regulations, 2018, read with SEBI Circular No. D&CC/FITTC/Cir-16/2002 dated 31/12/2002 and

SEBI Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/30/2010:

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted

equity capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services

(India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity capital. The audit is carried out every

quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges and to the Board of Directors.

8. Means of Communication: (to shareholders)

The Audited financial results, the quarterly results and the half yearly results of the Company are

published as follows:

Newspapers wherein results normally published: Financial Express (English) and

Malai Malar (Tamil)

Website where displayed: www.bmlindia.com

Whether the website also displays official news releases

and Presentations made to Institutional investors or analysts: No

Shareholders have been provided with an opportunity to provide their email id for receiving

correspondence and annual report in electronic form. The annual report has been sent in electronic

form to shareholders, who have provided their email Id. Physical copies of the annual report have

been provided to such shareholders based on a request received from them for this purpose.

The Company does online filing with BSE Limited (BSE) through web based application: BSE Listing

Centre.

The Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges, all information required to be disclosed under

Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations including material information

having a bearing on the performance / operations of the Company or other Price Sensitive information.

The Board of Directors has approved a policy for determining materiality of events and has authorized

the Managing Director for the purpose of determining materiality of an event or information and

making disclosures to the Stock Exchange..

9. General Shareholder Information              :     (As at 31st March 2021)

1. 14th Annual General Meeting:

Date : 24th September 2021

Time : 3.00 PM

Venue : Deemed Venue: No.4 Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004

Meeting held by Video Conferencing /

Other Audio Visual Means.

2. Financial Year : 2020-21
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3. Book Closure Date : 18-9-2021 to 24-9-2021 (Both days inclusive)
On account of AGM.

4. Dividend payment Date : Not applicable

5. Financial Calendar : 2021-22

Annual General Meeting : September 2021

Unaudited results for 1st quarter last week of July, 2021

Unaudited results for 2nd quarter last week of October, 2021

Unaudited results for 3rd quarter last week of January, 2022

Audited results for 31st March 2022 last week of May, 2022

6. Listing on Stock Exchanges : The equity shares of the company are listed on

The BSE Limited, P J Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai 400 001.

7. Stock Code

a) BSE Ltd : 535620

b) Demat ISIN No. in NSDL and CDSL : INE160L01011

The Company has paid the annual listing fee and custodian fees for the year 2021-22 to the

BSE Ltd and to the Depositories.

The equity shares of the Company are facilitated to be traded in the demat form at the National

Securities Depository Ltd and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

8. Market Price Data

The high and low market price and volume of shares traded during each month of the financial

year ended 31st March 2021 are given below:

BSE Limited

                 Month          Share Prices       Volume

High (Rs.)        Low (Rs.) (No. of shares)

April 2020 43.05 35.50 6,166

May 2020 36.30 25.35 2,519

June 2020 52.30 29.30 35,499

July 2020 94.50 54.85 33,041

August 2020 108.35 80.40 10,611

September 2020 78.80 53.10 3,388

October 2020 52.05 38.45 16,527

November 2020 51.00 38.15 9,978

December 2020 80.10 50.00 31,119

January 2021 64.90 55.00 33,479

February 2021 71.90 51.50 19,954

March 2021 84.00 62.30 26,291



14th Annual Report 2020-2021

72

9. Binny Mills Ltd Share Price performance in comparison to BSE Sensex:

Binny Mills Ltd Share Price at the BSE in comparison to BSE Sensex

Month Binny Mills Ltd . BSE Sensex at close

Share price at close  (Rs.)

April 2020 38.20 33,717.62

May 2020 29.30 32,424.10

June 2020 52.30 34,915.80

July 2020 94.50 37,606.89

August 2020 80.40 38,628.29

September 2020 53.10 38,067.93

October 2020 39.65 39,614.07

November 2020 50.90 44,149.72

December 2020 62.05 47,751.33

January 2021 56.75 46,285.77

February 2021 66.15 49,099.99

March 2021 65.50 49,509.15

10. Registrar and Transfer Agents: M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.,

‘Subramanian Building’, 5th Floor,

 No.1, Club House Road,

Chennai 600002.

Tel No. 044-28460390 – 28460394

Fax No. 044-28460129

E-mail ID: cameo@cameoindia.com

Shareholders / Investors are requested to forward share transfer documents, Dematerialisation

requests and other related correspondence directly to Cameo Corporate Services Ltd at the above

address for speedy response.

11. Share Transfer System:

(a) Share Transfers:

The authority to approve share transfers has been delegated by the Board to the Stakeholders’

Relationship Committee (SRC). Physical share transfers are registered and returned generally

within a period of fifteen days from the date of receipt, if the documents are correct and valid in

all respects. The SRC considers the transfer proposals generally once in 15 days in a month.

Shareholders / Investors are requested to send share transfer related documents directly to our

Registrar and Transfer Agents, viz., M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., whose address is

given in Para 10 of this section.

(b) Nomination facility:

Individual shareholders holding shares in physical form can nominate any person for the shares

held by them. This will save the nominee from going through the lengthy process of getting the

shares later on transmitted to his / her name. For further details, shareholders may write to our

Registrar and Transfer Agents, viz., M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., whose address is

given in Para 10 of this section.
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(c) Correspondence regarding Change of address, etc.:

Shareholders are requested to ensure that any correspondence for change of address, change

in Bank Mandates, etc., should be signed by the first named shareholder. Shareholders who

hold shares in Demat form should correspond with the Depository Participant with whom they

have Demat Account.

12. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2021:

(A) Distribution Schedule as on 31st March 2021:

       1 –     500 8,499 98.4251 2,56,856 8.0557

   501 –  1,000 63 0.7296 46,526 1.4591

1,001 –  2,000 33 0.3822 48,306 1.5151

2,001 –  3,000 8 0.0927 18,770 0.5886

3,001 –  4,000 6 0.0695 22,713 0.7123

4,001 –  5,000  2 0.0232 8,414 0.2639

5,001 –10,000 5 0.0580 34,790 1.0911

10,001 and above      19 0.2201 27,52,099 86.3139

TOTAL 8635 100.0000 31,88,474 100.0000

(B)  Distribution of Shareholding (Category wise) as on 31st March 2021:

Category Number of shares % of total
held shareholding

Promoters 23,87,010 74.86

Mutual Funds - -

Financial Institutions/ Banks 89,772 2.82

Central Government / State Government 52,654 1.65

Non Resident Indians 66,392 2.08

Bodies Corporate 30,933 0.97

Resident individuals 5,51,025 17.28

Others 10,688 0.34

TOTAL 31,88,474 100.00

13. Dematerialistion of shares and liquidity:

For dematerialization of Equity shares, the company has entered into a tripartite agreement with the

National Securities Depository Ltd., (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd., (CDSL).

Number of Shareholders Number of shares
Number of Shares held

Total Total
%  to total

shareholders
%  to total

Share Capital
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Details of shares in Demat and Physical Form as on 31st March 2021:

Particulars No. of No. of Shares % to Capital
Shareholders

NSDL 1,504 28,04,233 87.9491

CDSL 906 1,65,459 5.1893

Physical Form 6,225 2,18,782 6.8617

Total 8,635 31,88,474 100.0000

14. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact

on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDR’S or ADR’S No Warrants or any Convertible Instruments are

outstanding.

15. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

Not Applicable

16. Locations : Binny Mills Ltd

No.9, Stephenson Road,

Perambur, Chennai 600 012.

16. Address for Correspondence : Binny Mills Limited

And Registered Office No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore,

Chennai 600 004, India.

Ph: 044-24991518

E-mail: binnymills@bmlindia.com

For and on behalf of the Board

V.R. Venkataachalam

Chairman

[DIN: 00037524]

Registered Office:

No.4, (Old No.10) Karpagambal Nagar,

Mylapore, Chennai 600 004.

Date : 13th August, 2021 CIN: L17120TN2007PLC065807

Place : Chennai E mail Id: binnymills@bmlindia.com
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

(Pursuant to Regulation 26(3) and Para D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Board of Directors of Binny Mills Limited has adopted Code of Conduct to be followed by all Members

of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company respectively in compliance with the

Regulation 17(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As per Regulation 26(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed

Compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

For Binny Mills Ltd

V. Rajasekaran

Managing Director (CEO)

Place :  Chennai

Date :  26th June 2021

MANAGING DIRECTOR (CEO) COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8), Part B of Schedule II and Para C (13) of Schedule V of the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Board of Directors of Binny Mills Ltd

I, to the best of my knowledge and belief, certify that   —

a. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March

2021 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:

l These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or

contain statements that might be misleading;

l These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

b. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company’s code of conduct.
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c. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that

I have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial

reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware of and the steps I have taken or propose

to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. I have disclosed, based on my evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

that:

l There were no significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year;

l The significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any,have been disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements; and

l There were no instances of significant fraud of which I am aware of and the involvement therein,

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal

control system over the financial reporting.

V. Rajasekaran

Managing Director (CEO)

Place : Chennai

Date :  26th June, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of Binny Mills Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of Binny Mills Limited (“the Company”),

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the

year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as “the IND AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

IND AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 anditsprofit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the IND AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements section of our

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

audit of the IND AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the

ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IND AS financial statements.

Key audit matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the financial statements:

Note 41 in the financial statements, with regard to reversal of Dividend Distribution Tax amounting to Rs.

3,325.97 lakhs being no longer payable on account of amendment of Section 115-O of the Income Tax Act,

1961.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
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Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises

the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and

our Auditors’ Report thereon. The other information included in the Company’s annual report other than the

financial statements and Auditor’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe actions

applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the IND AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the

Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions

of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IND AS financial statements that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these IND AS financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our

auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the IND AS financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company

to cease to continue as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the IND AS financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the IND AS financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and

in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thoughtto bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significancein the audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
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a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,

2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The company has not provided/paid remuneration to any of its directors during the financial year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

IND AS financial statements.

ii. The Company does not have any long term contracts for which there were any material

foreseeable losses including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For NSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 010522S

Place : Chennai N Sowrirajan

Date : 26/06/2021 Proprietor

M. No. 207820

UDIN: 21207820AAACZ5381
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our

report to the Members of Binny Mills Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BINNY MILLS LIMITED (“the

Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, theaccuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financial information, as requiredunder the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
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external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For NSR& Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 010522S

Place : Chennai N Sowrirajan

Date : 26/06/2021 Proprietor

M. No. 207820

UDIN:21207820AAACZ5381
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our

report to the Membersof Binny Mills Limited of even date)

i. In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed

to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having

regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion

of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material

discrepancies between the book records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the

Company.

ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the

frequency of such verification is reasonable.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability

partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

and hence not commented upon.

iv. The Company has not given/made any loans, investments, guarantees, and securities requiring

compliance with the provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to the advance made to

Binny Ltd. amounting to Rs.907.77 Lakhs (including unamortised interest cost Rs.275.09 lakhs) and

these are in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits

as at March 31, 2021 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company.Thus, reporting

under clause 3(vi) of theorder is not applicable to the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and

other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State

Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears

as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(c) There were no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax

outstanding on account of any dispute.

viii. The company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions, banks or from the government

and has not issued any debentures.Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the order is not

applicable to the Company.

ix. The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. The Company has not raised

moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans

and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud

by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed

or reported during the year.

xi. No managerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the year. Accordingly, Provisions of

clause 3(xi) of the order is not applicable to the company.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company as

prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are

in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed

in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares

or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

xv. According to the information and explanations given tous and based on our examination of the records

of theCompany, the Company has not entered into non-cashtransactions with directors or persons

connected with himand hence provisions of section 192 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi. According to information and explanations given to us,the Company is not required to be registered

underSection 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For NSR& Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 010522S

Place : Chennai N Sowrirajan

Date : 26/06/2021 Proprietor

M. No. 207820

UDIN: 21207820AAACZ5381
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 1.83 2.50
Investment Property 5                   15,551.89                    15,534.10
Financial assets
     Other non-current financial assets 6                         912.28 911.66
Deferred Tax asset 7                           51.71  38.45
Other non-current assets 8                          26.63 31.38

Total non-current assets                   16,546.34 16,518.09

Current assets
Inventories 9                         161.24 153.02
Financial assets
     Trade receivables 10                           90.51 71.35
     Cash and cash equivalents 11                           256.08 107.60
     Other Current financial Assets 12                                 331.63                             331.22

Total current assets                         839.46                            663.19

Total Assets                   17,385.80              17,181.28

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 13                         318.85  318.85
Other equity 14                 (14,840.85)                       (17,064.75)

Total equity                 (14,522.00)                       (16,745.90)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
     Borrowings 15                   14,070.91         14,070.91
     Provisions 16                           13.20                  11.63

Total non-current liabilities                   14,084.11          14,082.54
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
     Trade payables 17                         116.37                   69.93
     Other financial liabilities 18                   17,658.72                19,726.77
Other current liabilities 19                             48.07                            47.47
Short Term Provisions 20                             0.53                             0.47

Total current liabilities                   17,823.69                 19,844.64

Total liabilities                   31,907.80                   33,927.18

Total Equity and Liabilities                   17,385.80                    17,181.28

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
(All amounts are in lakhs of  Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the board For M/s NSR & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.010522S)

V.R.Venkataachalam V.Rajasekaran S. Sahana N Sowrirajan
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary Proprietor
DIN: 00037524 DIN: 00037006 Membership No.62108 Membership No.207820

UDIN : 21207820AAACZ5381

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.06.2021
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Note For the year ended For the year ended

No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
(All amounts are in lakhs of  Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Continuing Operations

A Income

Revenue from operations 21                        614.96 901.33

Other income 22                           3,403.01 67.78

Total income                 4,017.97 969.11

B Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 23                   17.93                              13.37

Purchases of stock in trade 24                213.50 413.77

Changes in inventories of stock in trade 25                  (8.22) 4.32

Employee Benefits Expense 26 31.50 28.46

Finance costs 27              1,339.62 1,600.19

Depreciation and amortisation expense 28                      1.68 2.89

Other expenses 29 149.41 196.54

Total expenses              1,745.41 2,259.54

C Profit before exceptional items and tax            2,272.56 (1,290.43)

Exceptional items – -

D Profit/ (Loss) before tax from continuing operations             2,272.56 (1,290.43)

Income tax expense 30

Current tax                   60.81 63.90

Deferred tax charge/ (credit)                    (13.57) (8.10)

E Profit/ (Loss) from continuing operations            2,225.32 (1,346.23)

F Profit/ (Loss) before tax from discontinued operations – 30.77

Tax Expense of discontinued operations – 7.80

Profit/ (Loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) –                              22.97

Profit/ (Loss) for the year  2,225.32 (1,323.26)

G Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations                      (1.11) (0.16)

Income tax adjustment relating to these items                      ( 0.31) 0.04

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1.42)                           (0.12)

Total comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 2,223.90 (1,323.38)

Earnings per share 34

Basic earnings per share 69.79 (41.51)

Diluted earnings per share 69.79 (41.51)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the board For M/s NSR & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.010522S)

V.R.Venkataachalam V.Rajasekaran S. Sahana N Sowrirajan
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary Proprietor
DIN: 00037524 DIN: 00037006 Membership No.62108 Membership No.207820

UDIN : 21207820AAACZ5381

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.06.2021
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StaStaStaStaStatement oftement oftement oftement oftement of  Chang Chang Chang Chang Changes in Equity fes in Equity fes in Equity fes in Equity fes in Equity for the yor the yor the yor the yor the year ended 31ear ended 31ear ended 31ear ended 31ear ended 31ststststst Mar Mar Mar Mar Marccccch ,h ,h ,h ,h , 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
(All amounts are in lakhs of  Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2019 318.85

Changes in equity share capital during the year –

Balance at the end of March 31, 2020 318.85

Changes in equity share capital during the year –

Balance at the end of March 31, 2021 318.85

(B) Other Equity

Capital Other Profit and Loss Total

                          Particulars Redemption  comprehensive

Reserve income

Balance as at April 1, 2019 29.40 – (15,736.27) (15,706.87)

Additions/ (deductions) during the year –                       0.12 (34.50) (34.38)

Preference Dividend paid – –

Dividend Distribution Tax – –

Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (0.12) (0.12)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year – (0.12) (1,323.26) (1,323.38)

Balance as at March 31, 2020 29.40 –  (17,094.15)            (17,064.75)

Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve – –

Additions / (deductions) during the year –                       1.42 – 1.42

Preference Dividend paid – – – –

Dividend Distribution Tax – – – –

Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (1.42)                       (1.42)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year – (1.42)               2,225.32 2,223.90

Balance as at March 31, 2021 29.40                            – (14,870.25)            (14,840.85)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the board For M/s NSR & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.010522S)

V.R.Venkataachalam V.Rajasekaran S. Sahana N Sowrirajan
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary Proprietor
DIN: 00037524 DIN: 00037006 Membership No.62108 Membership No.207820

UDIN : 21207820AAACZ5381

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.06.2021
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
(All amounts are in Lakhs of  Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
 31st March, 2021  31st March, 2020

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit from continuing operations before income tax 2,272.56 (1,290.43)
Profit from discontinued operations before income tax - 30.77

Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense                        1.68                               2.89
Bad debts written off                              0.07 0.51
Other balances written off                              1.09 –
Liabilities written back (0.06) (0.05)
Reversal of Dividend Distribution tax (3,325.97) –
Assets discarded - 1.57
Compensation received on closure of Kolkata showroom - (35.00)
Interest Income (3.28) –
Rental income (325.35)  (349.24)

(1,379.26)                      (1,638.98)
Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (0.46)                             5.66
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets (0.09)                              (0.44)
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories (8.22)                            11.41
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (20.08)                             (18.03)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities 1,259.09                       1,545.65
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 46.44                           (8.97)

Cash generated from operations (102.59)                         (103.70)
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (58.30)                           (75.28)

Net cash from operating activities (A) (160.89)                         (178.98)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWIP)                          (18.80) (0.25)
Compensation received on closure of Kolkata showroom – 35.00
(Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks      (202.56)                             –
Interest received 2.81                             –
Rent received 325.35                           349.24

Net cash used in investing activities (B) 106.80                          383.99
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Preference Dividend paid –  (128.50)
Dividend Distribution Tax paid – (26.26)

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C)  – (154.76)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)                        (54.08)                              50.25
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 107.60                             57.35
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 53.52                             107.60

Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 “Cash Flow Statements”.
2. Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
     - in current accounts                     51.81 106.15
     Cash on hand                        1.71 1.45

                    53.52 107.60
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the board For M/s NSR & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.010522S)

V.R.Venkataachalam V.Rajasekaran S. Sahana N Sowrirajan
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary Proprietor
DIN: 00037524 DIN: 00037006 Membership No.62108 Membership No.207820

UDIN : 21207820AAACZ5381

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.06.2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31ST MARCH, 2021

1. Corporate Information

Binny Mills Ltd was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on December 20, 2007. The company

was issued Certificate for Commencement of Business on February 6, 2008. The Company is engaged

in the business of providing services and trading of goods. The company derives rental income by

letting out on rent, its warehouses situated in Perambur, Chennai. Apart from this the Company is

indulged in retail sales of textiles, from its textile division at Chennai and from the showrooms in

Bangalore.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which

are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified)

and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed

under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard

is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting

policy hitherto in use.

(ii) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires the management to make

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the

date of the financial statements.The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting

estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial

statements have been disclosed in Note 2A. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the

Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the financials tatements in the period in which the changes are made and, if

material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(iii) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from Covid-19

In light of the circumstances arising on account of COVID – 19 pandemic, the Company has considered

the possible effects that may result on the carrying amount of financial assets, inventory, receivables,

advances, Property plant and equipment etc. as well as liabilities accrued. In developing the assumptions

relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the

company has used available internal and external information such as current contract terms, financial

strength of parties etc. Having reviewed the underlying data and based on current estimates the

Company expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered and there is no significant
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impact on the liabilities accrued.  The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may

differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will

continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

(iv) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional

currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two

decimals). The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on

26/6/2021.

2A Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Company

is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assumptions are

based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs are assessed by the technical team at

each reporting date by taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset,

the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance support.Upon

review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for computationof

depreciation/amortisation. Also, management judgement is exercised for classifying the assetas

investment properties or vice versa.

(ii) Current tax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and

management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of

relevant provisions of law.

(iii) Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each

reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained / recognised,

ased upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies.

(iv) Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments

where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management

makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far

aspossible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in pricing the

instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best estimate aboutthe

assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual

prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
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(v) Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment for trade receivables is done based on assumptions about risk of default

andexpected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are

basedon management judgement considering the past history, market conditions and forward-

lookingestimates at the end of each reporting date.

(vi) Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE)

The impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable amount

of such assets. The assumptions used in computing the recoverable amount are based on

management’s judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount rates and the

risks specific to the asset.

(vii) Defined Benefit Plans and Other long-term benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long-term benefits, and the present value of such

obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation

involvesmaking various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future.

Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount

rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the

complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, this obligation is highly sensitive

to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(viii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured based on

quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including the Discounted

Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value The inputs to these modelsare taken from

observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is

exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity

risk, credit risk and volatility.

(ix) Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the

probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the

reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the

figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
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iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 12 months as its operating

cycle.

b) Fair value measurement

The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting

period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability;

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in theire

conomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant’s

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements

are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

valuemeasurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

valuemeasurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis,

theCompany determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy

byreassessingcategorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

valuemeasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and

proceduresfor both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are

involved,wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s board of directors. Selection criteria

includemarket knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are

maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets

andliabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the

levelof the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The component wise fair value measurement

isdisclosed in the relevant notes.

c) Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

theCompany and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is

beingmade. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership

istransferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per

theterms agreed with the customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking

intoaccount contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods after

deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It alsoexcludes value of self-

consumption.

Rental income

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of

therelevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.

Revenues in respect of rental income and hire charges received are recognized in accordance

with the terms of the agreement.

d) Property, plant and equipment

Deemed cost option for first time adopter of Ind AS

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), the property, plant and equipment were carried in

thebalance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation. The company has elected to continue
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the carrying amount of PPE in the existing financials as the deemed cost as at the date of

transition,viz.,1 April 2016.

Presentation

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment

and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if the recognition criteria are met. When significant

parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates

them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet

date, are disclosed as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of the

tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital workin

progress.

Component Cost

All material/ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been accounted

separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently and wherever

components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful life of

components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the

carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within

the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and

maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares / insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed

assets and their issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares

ischarged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and when consumed.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured asthe

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its usefullife.

The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted forcost,

less 5% being its residual value. Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the

useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such additions.

For deletion/ disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which

such assets have been discarded / sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing Rs.5,000 each or less

are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.
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The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including

property under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to

initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16 - Property,

plant and equipment’s requirements for cost model. The cost includes the cost of replacing parts

and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When

significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company

depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance

costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Company depreciates investment property as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the

Companies Act, 2013.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of

profit and loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase

and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs

are determined based on weighted average basis.

h) Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition

of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets

within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way

trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase

or sell the asset..

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their

contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of managing them.
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Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

l Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost

l Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at Fair value through Other

comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

l Other Financial Instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit

or loss (FVTPL)

l Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial instruments other than equity instruments at amortised cost

The Company classifies the financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised

cost, if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interestrate

(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiumon

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included

in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the

profit or loss.

Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at FVTOCI

Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria

are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows

and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) included within the FVTOCI category are

measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the

other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the group recognizes interest income, impairment

losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement. On

derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified

from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument isreported

as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTPL

The Company classifies all Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments), which do not

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.

Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) included within the FVTPL category are

measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.
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Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual

terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents solely payments of principal and

interest thereon, are measured as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans to employees, and others, deposits, interest

receivable and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVTOCI Equity investments in companies other than Subsidiaries and

associates as an option exercised at the time of initial recognition.

FVTPL Other investments in equity instruments, forward exchange contracts.

(to the extent not designated as hedging instrument)

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

l The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

l The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party

under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement~ and either (a) the Company has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered

into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks

and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to

recognisethe transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a) Financial assets other than equity instruments and are measured at amortised cost

e.g.,loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Financial assets other than equity instruments which are measured at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset thatresult

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

l Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

l All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss(ECL)

at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which

results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all

cash short falls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company

considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,

calland similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from

the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in

the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the

profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various financial instruments is

described below::

l Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables

and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying

amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment

allowance from the gross carrying amount.

l Financial instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected

at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount

is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments

on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is

designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each

reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar
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credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done retrospectively on the

following basis:

Name of the Impairment Testing Methodology

financial asset

Trade Receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over lifetime

of the assets are estimated by using a provision matrix which is

based on historical loss rates reflecting current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions which are grouped on the

basis of similar credit characteristics such as nature of industry,

customer segment, past due status and other factors that are relevant

to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL

is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is significant

change in credit risk since initial recognition, the impairment is

measured based on probability of default over the life time. If, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such

that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss

allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at

amortised cost

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance

costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings

and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings

including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are

classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near

term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company

that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
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109.Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are

designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit and loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit

risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss.

However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes

in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has

not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled

or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such

an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.

After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments

and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is

made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the

business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines

change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to

the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business

model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant

to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification

prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting

period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously

recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

S.No. Original Revised Accounting treatment

classification classification

1 Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous

amortised cost and fair value is recognised

in P&L.

2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes

 its new gross carrying amount. EIR is

calculated based on the new gross carrying

amount.

3 Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous

amortised cost and fair value is recognised

in OCI . No change in EIR due to

reclassification

4 FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes

its new amortised cost carrying amount.

However cumulative gain or loss in OCI is

adjusted against fair value. Consequently

the asset is measured as if it had always

been measured at amortised cost

5 FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes

 its new carrying amount. No other

adjustment is required.

6 FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair

value. Cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in OCI is reclassified to P&L at

the reclassification date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is

an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation of

ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to

the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a

qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of
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time to getready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing cost eligible

for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The

capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost applicable to

the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings

made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the

Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred

during that period. All other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

j) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered

from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount

are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where

the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised

incorrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets arising

from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the

extent of deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed

at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that

have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised
incorrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists toset
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is rendered
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and super annuation
fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions
tobe made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
onplan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-
accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determinedby
actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected
unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating
compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

l) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is

required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount
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is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and

its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset

does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups

of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the

asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount..

m) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates

that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the

provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are reviewed

at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made if realisation of money is doubtfulin

the judgement of the management.

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond

the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also

arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because

itcannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of

contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of

the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an

estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the

financial statements.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short

term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

o) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for

the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future

cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank

overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management,

bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

Cash flow statement.
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p) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable

to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average

number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number

of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity

shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,

unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for

each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are

adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

4. Property, plant and equipment

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

Gross carrying value as at 0.14 0.02 0.16 6.58 2.09 4.14 13.13

April 1, 2019

Additions                              - - - -               0.25 - 0.25

Disposals                              - - - -               - (0.19) (0.19)

Gross carrying value as at 0.14 0.02 0.16 6.58 2.34 3.95 13.19

March 31, 2020

Additions                              - - - - - 0.66 0.66

Disposals                              - - - - - - -

Ind AS adjustments                              - - - - - - -

Ind AS adjustments                            - - - - - - -

Gross carrying value as at 0.14 0.02 0.16 6.58 2.34 4.61 13.85

March 31, 2021

Accumulated Depreciation as at - -                   -           3.67               1.10 3.33 8.10

April 1, 2019

Depreciation/Amortisation

Charge for the year                              - - -           1.53               0.46  0.60 2.59

Disposals

Accumulated Depreciation as at -          -                   -           5.20               1.56  3.93 10.69

March 31, 2020

Depreciation/Amortisation

Charge for the year                              -           -                   -           1.02 0.18 0.13 1.33

Ind AS Adjustments                              - -                -                    - -

Disposals                              -              -                   -                -                    -                 -                   -

Accumulated Depreciation as at  -      -                   -           6.22               1.74 4.06            12.02

March 31, 2021

Carrying Value

As at April1, 2019                         0.14    0.02              0.16           2.91               0.99        0.81              5.03

As at March 31, 2020                         0.14            0.02              0.16           1.38               0.78          0.02              2.50

As at March 31, 2021                         0.14             0.02             0.16           0.36               0.60           0.55              1.83

Land Buildings
Furniture

 and
Fixtures

Vehicles Computers Total
Office
Equip-
ments

Particulars

Tangible Assets



14th Annual Report 2020-2021

106

5. Investment Property All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

 Particulars Land  Buildings  Total

Gross carrying value as at 15,518.00                  17.30  15,535.30

April 1, 2019

Additions                                 –                                 – –

Disposals                                 –                                 –     –

Ind AS adjustments                                 –                                 – –

Cost as at March 31, 2020          15,518.00                  17.30 15,535.30

Additions – 18.14 18.14

Disposals – – –

Ind AS adjustments                                 –                                 – –

Cost as at March 31, 2021          15,518.00                  35.44 15,553.44

Accumulated Depreciation as at -                            0.90                          0.90

April 1, 2019

Depreciation/Amortisation

Charge for the year                                 –                        0.30 0.30

Ind AS Adjustments                                 – – –

Disposals                                 –                                 – –

Accumulated Depreciation as at –                        1.20 1.20

April 1, 2020

Charge for the year –                        0.35 0.35

Ind AS Adjustments                                 – – –

Disposals – – –

Accumulated Depreciation as at –                        1.55 1.55

March 31, 2021

Net Block

As at April 1, 2019          15,518.00                  16.70 15,534.40

As at March 31, 2020           15,518.00                  16.40 15,534.10

As at March 31, 2021           15,518.00                  33.89 15,551.89

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

6 Other non-current financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to Related Parties 632.68 558.98

Unamortised interest cost 275.09 348.33

Deposits 4.51 4.35

912.28 911.66
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

7 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

Deferred Tax Liability

Employee Benefits 19.25 19.25
On Fixed Assets 10.71 10.71
Admissables U/S 40 a (ia)  0.99 0.99

Service tax offered to tax as trading Receipt earlier 0.54 0.54
Admissibles u/s 43B 10.43  9.75
Other adjustments 56.28 35.78

98.19 77.01

Deferred Tax Asset

Employee benefits 19.01 17.88
Disallowances U/s.40 a (ia) 16.52 16.52

Service tax offered to tax as trading Receipt 0.56 0.56
Disallowance for payments covered U/s.43B 9.82 8.90

On Fixed Assets 28.47 16.15
Other adjustments 75.51 55.44

149.90 115.46

Net deferred tax (liability)/asset  51.71 38.45

MAT credit entitlement – –

                 51.71 38.45

8 Other non-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Others 9.63 9.63

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 19.00 21.75

28.63 31.38

9 Inventories

Stock-in-trade 161.24 153.02

161.24 153.02

10 Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)

Outstanding for a period exceeding

six months from due date of payment – –

Other debts  90.51 71.35

 90.51 71.35

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss –  –

90.51 71.35
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on Hand 1.71 1.45

Balances with Banks
- In Current Account 51.81 106.15
- In Deposit Account 202.56 –

256.08 107.60

12 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to staff 0.40 0.09
Prepaid expenses 0.20 0.25
Balances with government authorities 1.71 1.78
Interest receivable 0.32 –
Advances for freight –  0.10

Advance for purchase of property 329.00 329.00

331.63 331.22

13 Capital

Authorised Share Capital

32,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 320.00  320.00

320.00  320.00

Issued Share Capital

31,88,474 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 318.85 318.85

318.85 318.85

Subscribed and fully paid up share capital

31,88,474 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 318.85 318.85

318.85 318.85

Notes:

a) Reconciliation of number of equity

shares subscribed Shares Shares

Balance as at the beginning of the year 31,88,474 31,88,474

Add: Issued during the year – –

Balance at the end of the year 31,88,474 31,88,474

b) Shares issued for consideration other than cash

                        Particulars         Number of shares as at

March 31, 2021   March 31, 2020

Shares out of the issued, subscribed and paid up            NIL            NIL

share capital were allotted in the last five years

pursuant to the various schemes of amalgamation

without payments being received in cash
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c) Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

1 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. The equity

shares of the company having par value of Rs.10/- rank pari-passu in all respects including

voting rights and entitlement to dividend. The dividend proposed if any, by the Board of Directors,

is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the

year, the Company has not declared any dividend.

2 In the event of liquidation, shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the

company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportionate to the

number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

d) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Name of the share holder No. of % of No. of % of

shares holding shares holding

held held

Shri.V.R.Venkataachalam 15,40,254 48.31 15,40,254 48.31

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

14 Other Equity

Capital Redemption Reserve 29.40                    29.40

Other Comprehensive Income – –

Profit and Loss Account (14,870.25)          (17,094.15)

(14,870.25)          (17,094.15)

a) Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 29.40 29.40

   Additions during the year – –

   Deductions/Adjustments during the year – –

Balance at the end of the year  29.40                    29.40

b) Other comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of the year – –

Additions during the year (1.42)                    (0.12)

Deductions/ Adjustments during the year 1.42 0.12

Balance at the end of the year – –
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

c) Profit and loss account

Balance at the beginning of the year (17,094.15)          (15,736.27)

Net profit for the period 2,225.32            (1,323.26)

Adjustment for shortfall in dividend – (34.50)

Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (1.42) (0.12)

Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve – –

Balance at the end of the year (14,870.25) (17,094.15)

15 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings

UnSecured

9%  Cumulative Preference Share Capital 14,070.91            14,070.91

14,070.91           14,070.91

Note:-‘‘Cumulative Preference Share Capital” Classified under financial liabilities as required by Ind AS

109 - Financial Instruments

Authorised Capital

28,15,00,000 9% Cumulative Redeemable 14,075.00 14,075.00

Preference Shares of Rs.5/- each

14,075.00 14,075.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paidup Capital

28,14,18,142 9% Cumulative Redeemable 14,070.91 14,070.91

Preference Shares of Rs.5/- each

14,070.91 14,070.91

Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Unamortised interest cost – –

Other non-current liabilities – –

– –

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

16 Provisions

Provision for gratuity 11.14                    10.47

Provision for compensated absence 2.06                      1.16

13.20                    11.63
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

17 Trade payables

Trade payables ** 116.37                69.93

116.37                69.93

** Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been

determined to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of information collected by

the management represents the principal amount

payable to these enterprises. There are no interest due

and outstanding as at the reporting date. Please refer note 40.

18 Other current financial liabilities

Rent advance received 68.52                    76.98

Preference Dividend Payable 17,590.20            16,323.82

DDT Payable –              3,325.97

17,658.72            19,726.77

19 Other current liabilities

Other Payables 48.07 47.47

48.07 47.47

20 Provisions

Provision for Gratuity 0.45                      0.42

Provision for Compensated absence 0.08                      0.05

0.53           0.47

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

 For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

21 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products  288.12                           550.58

Sale of services- rent 325.35                           349.24

Other Operating Revenue 1.49                               1.51

614.96                           901.33

22 Other income

Interest income                     67.78                             67.78

Interest income                     3,325.97                             –

Other non operating income                      3.34                             –

  3,403.01                             67.78
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

 For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

23 Cost of materials consumed

Packing Materials 17.93                             13.37

17.93                             13.37

24 Purchases of stock in trade

Purchases of stock in trade                    213.50                          413.77

     213.50                          413.77

25 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress,

stock in trade and finished goods

Opening Balance

Stock in trade (traded items)*                    153.02                           157.34

                153.02                           157.34

Closing Balance

Stock in trade (traded items)                    161.24 153.02

                    161.24 153.02

(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (8.22) 4.32

* The opening stock for FY 2019-20, does not include the inventory of the discontinued division

26 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 22.89                             21.46

Contribution to Gratuity Fund 0.78                              (0.31)

Contribution to provident and other funds                          3.58 3.49

Staff workmen welfare expenses                          2.12 3.26

Contribution to compensated absences                            2.13 0.56

                  31.50                          28.46

27 Finance Cost

Dividend on Preference shares                  1,266.38                       1,526.75

Other finance cost                       73.24                             73.44

             1,339.62                    1,600.19

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation 1.68                               2.89

1.68                               2.89
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

 For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

29 Other expenses

Rent                          5.94 5.94

Insurance                          0.93 1.34

Power and Fuel                           3.93 4.27

Repairs to building                      9.89 16.64

Rates and taxes 19.34 30.71

Payment to Auditors

   for audit 1.50 1.50

   for certification 0.60 0.50

Selling expenses 27.45                             45.39

Professional charges                      11.20 9.53

Retainer fees paid  20.57 24.53

Security Charges 15.85 15.08

Miscellaneous expenses  32.22 41.11

149.41                        196.54

30 Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 60.81 71.70

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods  – –

Total current tax expense                      60.81 71.70

Deferred tax

Deferred tax adjustments                     (13.57) (8.10)

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (13.57) (8.10)

Income tax expense 47.24 63.60
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

For the year ended  For the year ended

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

b) The income tax expense for the year

can be reconciled to the accounting

profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,272.56 (1,290.43)

Profit before tax from discontinued operations – 30.77

Income tax expense calculated on  632.23 (359.00)

              continuing operations at 27.82%

Income tax expense calculated on  – 7.80

              discontinued operations at spl rates

Effect of expenses/ (income) that are not treated (571.42) 422.90

               differenly for tax purposes

                    Income tax expense 60.81 71.70

c) Income tax recognised in other

comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation and (0.31) 0.04

equity instruments

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (0.31) 0.04

d) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2021

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ Opening Recognised Recognised Closing

assets in relation to: balance  in profit or in OCI balance

loss

Property, plant, and equipment (10.12) – – (10.12)

and Intangible Assets

Expenses allowable on payment 2.74 (13.57) 0.31 (10.52)

basis under the Income Tax Act

Other temporary differences 0.56 – – 0.56

 (6.82) (13.57) 0.31 (20.08)

MAT Credit entitlement – – – –

 (6.82) (13.57) 0.31 (20.08)
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

e) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ Opening Recognised Recognised Closing

assets in relation to: balance  in profit or in OCI balance

loss

Property, plant, and equipment (10.12)      – – (10.12)

and Intangible Assets

Expenses allowable on payment 10.80 (8.10) 0.04 2.74

basis under the Income Tax Act

Other temporary differences 0.56 – – 0.56

1.24      (8.10) 0.04  (6.82)

MAT Credit entitlement – – – –

1.24      (8.10) 0.04  (6.82)

For the year ended  For the year ended

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

31 Earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to owners  2,225.32 (1,323.26)

of the Company (Rs. in lakhs)

Weighted average number of ordinary 31,88,474                     31,88,474

shares outstanding

Basic earnings per share (Rs) 69.79 (41.51)

Diluted earnings per share (Rs)                             69.79 (41.51)

32 Earnings in foreign currency

FOB value of exports Nil Nil

33 Expenditure in foreign currency Nil Nil

34 Commitments and contingent liability

Particulars  Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Contingent Liabilities ** Rs.  Rs.

Rent payable to M/s Square Projects 22,05,000.00                      20,85,000.00

Associates for the Company’s showroom

(a) **The Company has a pending litigation in the Court of City Civil Judge at Bengaluru, in the form

of rent payable by the Company to M/s Square Projects Associates for the Company’s Show

Room at M G Road, Bengaluru. The case is pending for disposal and hence the liability, if any, is

not quantifiable. However, the Company has created provision for possible liability of rent payable

to the extent of Rs.13,05,000/- and for rent damages to the extent of Rs.9,00,000/- in the books
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of accounts in the respective years itself. The Company is paying property tax for the Show Room

at M G Road, Bengaluru for the period under litigation and the amount so paid is shown as

receivable from M/s Square Projects Associates in the Balance Sheet.The Company is a Resulting

Company of the Demerger Scheme of erstwhile Binny Ltd. Subsequent to the Demerger, the

Company was not provided with the list of litigations that are pending and for which the Company

may become liable. Hence, the liability of the Company, if any, arising out of the settlement of the

pending litigations, will be provided for and settled as and when the liability arises.

(b) The Company has a pending litigation in the court of City Civil Judge at Bengaluru, in the form of

compensation payable by the Company and S V Global Mills Ltd to the legal successors of a

victim who died in an electricity accident outside the premises of the Company’s showroom at

Bengaluru. The amount of compensation payable is not yet determined as the case is pending

and hence no provision is made in the books.

35 Operating Segments

The company is engaged in the business of Trading goods and providing services and therefore, has

only one reportable segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’. The operations of

the Company is only within India and accordingly, no disclosure based on geographical location is

applicable.

36  Operating lease arrangements Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As Lessor

The Company has entered into operating lease

arrangements for certain surplus facilities. The

leases are cancellable at the option of either

party to lease and may be renewed based on

mutual agreement of the parties.

Total lease income recognised in the 325.35 349.24

Statement of Profit and Loss

As Lessee

The Company has entered into operating lease

arrangements for certain facilities. The leases

are cancellable at the option of either party to

lease and may be renewed based on mutual

agreement of the parties.

Lease payments recognised in the          5.94 5.94

Statement of Profit and Loss
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37 Financial Instruments

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as

going concern, while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual

operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements

are met through equity, long term and short-term borrowings. For the purposes of the Company’s

capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

attributable to the equity holders.

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

Gearing Ratio: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Debt 14,070.91 14,070.91

Less: Cash and bank balances 256.08 107.60

Net debt 13,814.83 13,963.31

Total equity (14,522.00)          (16,745.90)

Net debt to equity ratio (%) -95.13% -83.38%

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

Categories of Financial Instruments March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial assets

a. Measured at amortised cost

Other non-current financial assets 912.28 911.66

Trade receivables 90.51 71.35

Cash and cash equivalents 256.08 107.60

b. Measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income  (FVTOCI)

Investments (non-current) – –

c. Mandatorily measured at fair value

through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments (current) – –

Derivative instruments – –

Financial liabilities

a. Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings 14,070.91       14,070.91

Other non-current financial liabilities – –

Trade payables 116.37 69.93

Other financial liabilities   17,658.72        19,726.77

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Derivative instruments – –
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Financial risk management objectives

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and

international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations

through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks

include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and

liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows

that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities are

exposed to such risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company’s operations does not involve transactions denominated in foreign currencies;

consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations does not arise. Accordingly, the Company

does not have any exposure to such risks.

There are no hedged or unhedged foreign currency exposures outstanding at as March 31, 2021 and

March 31, 2020.

Disclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Company does not have any exposure relating to hedged and unhedged foreign currency

transactions/ balances.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company’s operations does not involve transactions denominated in foreign currencies;

consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations does not arise. Accordingly, the Company

does not have any exposure to such risks.

Interest rate risk management

The Company does not have any borrowings and accordingly is not exposed to interest rate risk

which arises, if it borrow’s funds at both fixed and floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Company does not have any borrowings and accordingly there is no disclosure made in respect

of interest rate sensitivity analysis.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in

financial loss to the Company. The Company is not subject to major credit risk as the majority of its

trade receivables are covered by means of interest free security deposit taken at the inception of the

agreement.
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Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum

exposure is the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks,

trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity investments.

(a) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation

policy for each customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer is defined.

Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank

guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.The Company does not have higher concentration of

credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected

credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments

and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period

and involves higher risk.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally

low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned

high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.Investments of surplus funds are

made only with approved Financial Institutions/Counterparty. Investments primarily include investment

in units of quoted Mutual Funds,etc. These Mutual Funds and Counterparties have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective

of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for

use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual

funds, which carry minimal mark to market risks. The Company also constantly monitors funding

options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted

cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to

pay.

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

March 31, 2021 Due in 1st  Due in 2nd to  Due after  Carrying

year 5th year 5th year amount

Borrowings – 14,070.91 – 14,070.91

Trade payables 116.37                           – –                 116.37

116.37               14,070.91 –            14,187.28
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March 31, 2020 Due in 1st  Due in 2nd to  Due after  Carrying

year 5th year 5th year amount

Borrowings – 14,070.91 –      14,070.91

Trade payables 69.93              – –           69.93

69.93      14,070.91   –      14,140.84

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Fair value of financial assets and

financial liabilities that are not

measured at fair value (but fair

value disclosures are required): Nil Nil

38 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties having significant influence

The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary, associate or joint venture company

Companies in which directors are interested TCP Limited

The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Limited

Binny Limited

Key management personnel (KMP)

Shri V.R.Venkataachalam  Promoter, Non- Executive Chairman

Shri V. Sengutuvan  Promoter, Non- Executive Director

Shri S. Natarajan  Promoter, Non- Executive Director

Shri V. Rajasekaran  Managing Director- Executive and Non Independent

Smt. S. Sahana  Company Secretary
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b) Transactions during the year

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

S.No. Nature of transactions  Year ended  Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1 Shri V.R.Venkataachalam 0.05 0.15

Sitting fees

2 Shri V. Sengutuvan 0.05 0.20

Sitting fees

3 Shri S. Natarajan  Nil  Nil

Sitting fees

4 Shri V. Rajasekaran  Nil   Nil

Remuneration

5 Smt V Samyuktha  0.05 0.20

Sitting fees

6 Smt S. Sahana  4.35   Nil

Remuneration

7 Redemption of preference shares Nil   Nil

8 Binny Ltd

Advance given to purchase of property 0.46 (5.65)

9 TCP Ltd

Sale of goods during the year 5.85 7.49

c) Balances at the end of the year

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

S.No. Nature of transactions Year Ended  Year Ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1 Preference Shares Allotted:

TCP Limited 13,802.70 13,802.70

The Thiruvalluvaar Textiles Private Limited 263.20 263.20

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Director 1.60 1.60

Shri V. Sengutuvan, Director 1.60 1.60

             14,069.10 14,069.10

2 Other Payables:

Shri V.R. Venkataachalam, Director      0.63 0.63

3 Advance given to Binny Ltd                907.78 907.31

4 TCP Ltd – Outstanding for 0.28 0.40

supplies made

1 The transactions with the related parities were made in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length

basis. Hence, the transactions will not attract the provisions of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 No amounts have been written off, or provided for, or wirtten back, during the year, in respect of debts

due from, or to, the related parties.
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39 Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in

respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company

make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The

contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the Provident fund as well as Employee State

Insurance Fund.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs.3.58 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Rs. 3.49 lakhs) represents contribution payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in

the rules of the plan.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. In terms of the same, gratuity is computed

by multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary including dearness Allowance, if any) by completed

years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months and again by 15/26. The Act

provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling on

gratuity payable to an employee on separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity

Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in cases where an enterprise has more favourable terms in

this regard the same has been adopted.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate

risk and salary risk.

Investment risk he present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a

discount rate determined by reference to the market yields on government

bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is

below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However,

this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt

investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by

reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both

during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of

the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by

reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase

in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Discount Rate 5.50% p.a 6.09% p.a.

Rate of increase in compensation level 4.05% p.a. 4.25% p.a.

Attrition Rate 3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a.

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets Not applicable Not applicable

Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Ult. IALM (2012-14) Ult.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense

in the Statement of profit and Loss:

Current service cost 0.43 0.44

Net interest expense   0.63 0.74

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in – –

       net interest expense)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 1.06              1.18

       profit or loss

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(OCI) for the Year :

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period            0.83 0.01

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in   0.83 0.01

other comprehensive income

                        Total 1.89  1.19

i. Current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee

Benefits Expense’ in profit and loss.

ii. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

.
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All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the March 31, March 31,

Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans 2021 2020

is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.59                       10.89

Fair value of plan assets – –

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation      11.59                       10.89

Funded – –

Unfunded 11.59                       10.89

    11.59 10.89

The above provisions are reflected under ‘Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity’ (Long and

short-term provisions) [Refer note 16 and 20].

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as

follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation 10.89  11.38

Current service cost 0.43                   0.44

Interest cost  0.63 0.74

Actuarial (gains)/losses 0.83 0.01

Benefits paid (1.20)  (1.68)

Closing defined benefit obligation           11.59 10.89

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets – –

Interest Income – –

Expected return on plan assets (excluding amounts – –

included in net interest expense)

Contributions – –

Benefits paid – –

Actuarial gains/(loss) – –

Closing fair value of plan assets – –

Sensitivity analysis

In view of the fact that the Company, for preparing the sensitivity analysis, considers the present

value of the defined benefit obligation which has been calculated using the projected unit credit
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method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined

benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet there is no disclosure to be made.

(b) Compensated absences

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation

performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method

on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense recognised during the year is Rs.2.13 Lakhs (previous

year Rs. 0.56 Lakhs).

40 Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act,

2006 are as under

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -

(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the - -

appointed date during the year

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act - -

(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for delayed - -

payments, as per the agreed terms

(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid - -

* This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis

of information available with the Company.

41 On transition to IndAS, cumulative redeemable preference shares issued by the company is considered

as Financial liabilities and the dividend payable thereon along with Dividend Distribution Tax as per

Sec. 115-O of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as financial cost in accordance with IndAS 32.

The provisions of Sec. 115-O of the Income Tax Act, 1961 has been amended with effect from

01.04.2020 stating that dividend declared, distributed or paid by the  Company will not be subject to

Dividend Distribution Tax.  Consequent to the said amendment, Dividend Distribution Tax recognised

in the books is no longer payable by the Company and hence the amount of Rs.3,325.97 lakhs is

reversed and is included under “Other income”.

42 Acknowledgement of BalancesThe Company has obtained confirmation of balances from all the

banks. In respect of Advances, Debtors and Creditors, the confirmation of balances were sought for

by the Company and has been obtained in few cases.

43 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current

year figures.
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the board For M/s NSR & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.010522S)

V.R.Venkataachalam V.Rajasekaran S. Sahana N Sowrirajan
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary Proprietor
DIN: 00037524 DIN: 00037006 Membership No.62108 Membership No.207820

UDIN: 21207820AAACZ5381

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.06.2021
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